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Royal Bank of Canada Trust
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Six months ended 30 June
00ed300 0600

2016 2015
20160 20150
RMB’000 RMB’000
ooog gooo
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
ooooodo gooooad
Revenue oo 1,762,749 1,772,247
Gross profit oo 456,046 380,939
Profit before tax gooo 143,270 76,929
Profit for the period (Note 1) oooooooio 98,258 55,205
Profit for the period attributable to oooooooooo
Owners of the parent oooooo 82,140 17,073
Non-controlling interests oooooo 16,118 38,132
Earnings per share attributable to goooooooood
ordinary equity holders of the parent oooooag
Basic oo 2.63 cents 0.55 cents
2.630 0.550
Diluted oad 2.63 cents 0.55 cents
2.630 0.550

Note 1: Profit for the period represents profit before netting off profit for

ooi0 ooO0oO0O0o0oO0O0O0O0O000000

the period attributable to non-controlling interests. gooooooo

30 June 31 December

2016 2015

20160 20150

601300 120 310

RMB’000 RMB’000

gooad gooa

(Unaudited) (Audited)
oooddo ooooo

Non-current assets ooooo 1,305,449 1,221,748
Current assets oooo 3,353,519 3,645,816
Current liabilities oooad 1,203,117 1,313,771
Net current assets ooooo 2,150,402 2,332,045
Total assets less current liabilities oooooooo 3,455,851 3,553,793
Non-current liabilities ooooo 514,850 97,764
Total equity ooo 2,941,001 3,456,029
Attributable to: ooooooo

Owners of the parent oooooo 2,839,837 3,316,907
Non-controlling interests ogooooad 101,164 139,122




Management Discussion and Analysis

Market Review

During the Period under Review, the global economy was unstable
with the occurrence of a series of impactful risks and no sign
of growth in major economies. The expectation of U.S. Federal
Reserve rate hike stirred up market sentiment, while Brexit also
posed great impacts to the European Union and global economies.
The negative effects triggered by both political and economic
turmoil have hindered the global economic recovery.

As indicated by the National Bureau of Statistics, the nationwide
GDP increased 6.7% year-on-year in the first half of 2016. The
PRC economy has entered into a new era of “New Normal”
with economic growth slowdown, industrial restructuring, and
economic development modification. Guided by the different
policies progressively launched such as “the Belt and Road”
initiative, “Made in China 2025” and “Internet Plus”, the PRC
semi-conductor lighting industry will trend toward intelligence,
informatisation, quality enhancement and standardisation in 2016.
Meanwhile, the real estate market in China has rebounded as a
result of various state policies of destocking housing inventories
and the surge of new bank lending which in turn fuels the demand
for the lighting industry.

The LED lighting industry has been developing rapidly with frequent
product updates and inter-generational product transition that
increases the market demand for replacement, resulting in the
prevalence of mergers and acquisitions, industry restructuring and
company closure. Major LED lighting enterprises have embarked
on adjusting their marketing strategies to explore their own niches
with an attempt to focus on segmented market. Enterprises have
also started to pay attention to the importance of luminous efficacy
and quality enhancement so as to provide customers with more
intelligent, personalised and quality lighting experience, in search
of new business development. As the kick-starting year for the
“13th Five-year Plan” in 2016, the development of “Smart City”
has become an inevitable trend in China. As a stepping stone for
“Smart City” development, intelligent lighting will undergo a new
round of development with the aid of new policy implementations.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
Oo0oooooo

Progress on Litigation

From December 2014 onwards, a subsidiary of the Company
(the “Subsidiary”) initiated a series of court proceedings in the
PRC against Mr. WU Changjiang, a former director and former
chief executive officer of the Company, and others in relation to a
number of purported pledges and guarantees entered into by Mr.
WU Changjiang purportedly on behalf of the Subsidiary, and certain
counter guarantees provided by a PRC company. The Subsidiary
is also a co-defendant in three PRC court actions commenced by
two PRC banks and a finance company, respectively, in relation
to several purported pledges and guarantees entered into by Mr.
WU Changjiang. Please refer to the Company’s 2015 annual report
for more information.

In relation to one of the aforementioned court actions commenced
by a PRC bank (the “First Bank”) against the Subsidiary as a
co-defendant, certain funds held by the Subsidiary had been
frozen by the First Bank. In addition, the Company received a
judgment from the Chongqging Fifth Intermediate People’s Court
(the “Judgment”) in May 2016, which, among other things, ordered
that the Subsidiary was jointly and severally liable with another
PRC company for the payment of RMB60,000,000, plus interest
and costs, to the First Bank. Please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 22 May 2016 for details. The Company has
filed an appeal against the Judgment with the Chongqging Higher
People’s Court, and the outcome of the appeal is pending.

Business Review

2016 is the year of reform implementation for the Group. In
respect of the market positioning, the Group expedited the
simultaneous development of “Commercial Lighting + Household
Lighting”. The Group continued to push forward the rapid
development of commercial lighting while actively explored the
business opportunities of household lighting with an aim to achieve
remarkable growth results of household lighting and commercial
lighting businesses. In relation to channels expansion, leverage
on its competitive edge in engineering project, the Group won the
bids and commenced operation for the “G20 Summit Hangzhou
Qianjiang Century City Lighting Project”, and significant municipal
projects including the “Liuzhou Feng Qing Gang Lighting Project”

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED Interim Report 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis
O00o0oodad

and “Xiangjiang Lighting Project”. Meanwhile, the Group has also
secured a group of large-scale chained commercial clients led by
Evergrande Group (O O O O) and Greenland Group (D OO 0O). In
terms of the products, the Group adopted a dual-engine model of
“Quality + Design” that enhanced the functionality, craftsmanship
and appearance of the products to strive for excellence and
refinement. In particular, the commercial lighting business has
shifted its focus from the general market to segmented market.
The Group adhered to mid- and high-end positioning for its
household lighting products to achieve unity in professionalism,
technology and art with its competitiveness in design and price-
to-performance ratio. As for product management, the Group
continued to enhance supply chain management and optimize
the manufacturing processes to improve its responsiveness. The
application of the lean production and management system as well
as the “Amoeba” operating concept imposed strict production and
labor cost control and lifted up the overall operating efficiency.
Furthermore, the Group has been proactively seeking opportunities
to reinforce the complementarity among industry players and
accelerate overseas market expansion, and also enhanced the
international influence of the NVC brand by means of various major
sport events. Overall, the Group has witnessed fruitful outcomes
from the standardisation measures while the costs and fees have
been effectively controlled since the implementation of reform
and transformation, contributing to the remarkable growth in the
Group’s overall results.

Sales and distribution

As for the NVC brand in the PRC market, the Group incorporated
38 exclusive regional distributors during the Period under Review.
The exclusive regional distributors had a total of 3,187 exclusive
outlets (100.0% coverage rate in the provincial capital, 93.9%
coverage rate in the prefecture-level cities, 68.0% coverage rate
in the county-level cities, and 1.8% coverage rate in the town
centers), representing a decrease of 250 exclusive outlets as
compared with the Corresponding Period. Such decrease was

0000000000 201te00onog



Management Discussion and Analysis
Oo0oooooo

Period under Review, the Group strengthened the construction
of household sales channels, integrated products and suppliers’
resources, and set up a comprehensive household marketing
system. Meanwhile, the Group endeavored to transfer traditional
channels to 020 business model in order to realise the advantages
of both offline servicing and online cost-effectiveness, aiming
at providing consumers with perfect shopping experiences and
products with high price-to-performance ratio. Driven by the
revenue growth of household lighting products during the Period
under Review, the sales volume of NVC brand products in the PRC
reached RMB1,073,119,000, representing a 13.2% increase as
compared with the Corresponding Period.

In respect of the NVC brand in the international market, the Group
restructured the product lines in light of the “Technology + Art”
strategy to gradually broaden and deepen the sales channels,
while expedited the NVC brand globalisation strategy grasping the
opportunities arising from Rio Olympic Games during the Period
under Review. Product development will incline toward international
standard and take reference to the product series and positioning
of large-scale international enterprises for technology advancement,
in order to enhance the market positioning and quality control of
the products. In terms of channel development, the number of
engineering projects in Middle East continued to grow, while
projects like the Qatar FIFA World Cup and the top 10 family-
operated hotels in United Arab Emirates were in smooth progress.
At the same time, the Group has actively expanded the Southeast
Asia market by launching the NVC brand and project in Indonesia.
In addition, with reference to the successful market development
by the UK NVC, the Group has kicked off the preparation work
for setting up offices in Singapore and Dubai. The UK, Brazil,
Dubai and Singapore offices will form a stronghold of service
and support network covering global front-end markets upon
completion to provide clients with more immediate and prompt
services. However, dragged by the international economic situation
during the Period under Review, the international sales volume of
NVC brand products dropped 6.1% from the Corresponding Period
to RMB178,718,000.

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED Interim Report 2016
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Management Discussion and Analysis
O00o0oodad

For non-NVC brands in the PRC and the international markets, 00000000 ouoooooooao
the Group mainly supplied well-known lighting enterprises with OO0 O OO0ODMOOOOOOOOOO

energy-saving lamps, energy-saving light tubes and accessoriesin O OO0 00000000 O0OODOOOO
the form of ODM. The Group’s non-NVC brands wereinagradual OO0 0000000000 O0OOO0OO

transition from traditional lighting products to LED lighting products. OO0 O0OLEDO OO0 O0O0OOOOOOOOO
Impacted by the shrinking market share of the traditional lighting OO0 O OOOOOOOOOOOOOO
products during the Period under Review, the total salesvolume OO0 000000 OOOOOOO0O
of non-NVC brand products was RMB510,912,000, representing [ [0 19.4%00000510,912000

a drop of 19.4% as compared with the Corresponding Period.

Product research and development and design ooooooo

During the Period under Review, the roadmap of the Group’s OO0 O O0+0 0000000000
research and development focus on “Technology + Art”. Inrelation OO0 000000000 OO0OO
to the development of new products and new technology, the OO0 00000 OO0OO0O0OO0O0OO
Group continued to promote the product platforms, modularisation, 00000 oooooooooaog
serialisation and standardisation. During the Period under Review, OO0 000000003900 00O
the Group launched 39 new products in the luminaire series,and OO0 00000000 OOO0OO
started to conduct research on smart lighting. In respect of the QOO0 OO0 0 OOO0O0OOOOO0O
enhancement of production efficiency, the Group kept pushing OO0 O 00O O0OO0OOOOOOO
forward the reform of production automation and semi-automation. OO0 OO0 O0O0O0OOOOOOOO
The cost of existing products reduced as a result of various OO0 OO000OO0OO0OOOOO0OO
proactive measures including the standardisation of components OO0 00000000000 O0O0O0O
and parts, advancement of technical processes, minimizaton OO0 00000000 025,9440 00
of procurement categories, as well as the adoption of bulkk OO O0OO0O00OO1.5%0 02016060 30
procurement. During the Period under Review, the Group invested OO0 000000000 O0O346000
RMB25,944,000 in research and development, accounting for OO0 O OOOOOOQODOOOOOOA4S
1.5% of the Group’s revenue. As at 30 June 2016, the Grouphada OO0 0000000001400
workforce of 346 in product design and research and development.

Ooooooooogo
OooooooOoooOono

Furthermore, the Group applied for 45 new patents with 14 patents
granted and approved during the Period under Review.

0000000000 201te00onog
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Management Discussion and Analysis

market in the domestic commercial lighting market, coupled with
the implementation of engineering project management and the
enhancement of project delivery capability. For the domestic
household lighting market, the Group will reinforce intensive
training and terminal management to form professional household
retail teams and town channel development teams so as to capture
the market share in the region. Meanwhile, the Group will carry
out renovation of exclusive outlets. It is estimated that there will
be over 700 reformed or newly established exclusive outlets. As
for the overseas market, the Group will deploy more resources on
the development of project distributors in the regions of Southeast
Asia, Middle East, and Eastern Europe, with an estimation of 20
more new project distributors. The Group will also make great
efforts to develop exclusive outlets, shops-in-shops and exhibition
walls. It is estimated to add 100 outlets for our brand.

With respect to “Product Enhancement”, the Group will focus
on adjusting product structure and product mix of commercial
lighting and household lighting products. Art and intelligence will
become the newly defined consumer demands. In particular, the
development focus in commercial lighting products will shift from
the general market to segmented market, whereas the household
lighting products will focus on mid-and high-end products so as
to achieve unity in professionalism, technology and art.

As for “Brand Building”, along with the in-depth reform of the
Group, providing customers with magnificent lighting experience
through innovative technology and artistic design has become
the mission of the Group. In terms of technology, the Group will
implement the pilot automation and semi-automation tests and
focus on smart lighting products. In terms of art, designers will
play vital roles in product system, with the kick-off of marketing
cooperation with designers and luxurious products. Meanwhile,
the Group will enhance its brand value by virtue of significant
marketing events, including Rio Olympic Games, G20 Summit, and
the operation of pioneering smart store among industry players.

In terms of “Cost Control”, the Group will carry out systematic
product planning, balance production capacity, minimise order
placements and centralise purchasing to lower procurement cost.
The Group will also implement “Amoeba” operation mode concept
with, lean management and the optimal organisational structure
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Management Discussion and Analysis'
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to streamline staffing, and press ahead the automation and
semi-automation of production plant so as to reduce production
costs. From product standardisation to platform-orientated, the
Group will make use of its integrated advantages of upstream and
downstream resources to develop new secondary optical platform
and power supply platform based on its existing lighting solutions
with an aim to reduce research and development costs eventually.

Financial Review
Revenue

Revenue represents the net amount of the invoiced value of goods
sold, after allowances for returns and trade discounts. During
the Period under Review, the turnover of the Group amounted to
RMB1,762,749,000, representing a decrease of 0.5% as compared
with the Corresponding Period. In particular, the LED lighting
products recorded revenue of RMB1,176,887,000 with a drastic
increase of 94.8% from the Corresponding Period.

Revenue by product segments
The table below sets forth the revenue by product segments

(luminaire, lamp and lighting electronic products) and the growth
rate of each segment.

’\?”

gobooboooboooooognn
goboooboobooooboon
goobobooooboooboboan
goooooboooboobobogon
gooooobooboboboo

gogdo

gooo

goboboooboobooobogn
gobooboobobooboooon
ooooooooDoont,7e2,7490
O00000D0.5%000LEDD OO
goobooboooooi17e,8870
0000000 0094.8%0

oooooooonn

goooboobboooooooooooboo
ggooooooooooooboobooo

Six months ended 30 June
goen3000600

2016 2015

20160 20150
RMB’000 RMB’000 Growth rate
goog gooo ooo
Luminaire products gooo 1,210,405 1,060,923 14.1%
Lamp products oooo 443,105 580,272 -23.6%
Lighting electronic products gooooo 109,239 131,052 -16.6%
Total oo 1,762,749 1,772,247 -0.5%

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED Interim Report 2016



Management Discussion and Analysis

During the Period under Review, the sales of luminaire products
increased 14.1% mainly attributed to the successful transformation
of the Group’s diversified business models and the remarkable
growth in the sales of household lighting products, accounting for
an important revenue growth source of the Group. Sales of lamp
products and lighting electronic products recorded a decrease of
23.6% and 16.6% respectively, mainly due to the transformation
of some lamp products and lighting electronic products from
traditional lighting to LED lighting, as well as the declining sales
volume and unit price of traditional lighting products under the
fierce market competition of LED lighting products.

Revenue by geographical locations, NVC brand sales and
non-NVC brand sales

The table below sets forth the revenue by geographical locations,
NVC brand products and non-NVC brand products and the growth
rate of each item. Our non-NVC brand products primarily consist
of ODM products.

odoooon

O000O0O0oDO0OOoOoonboOt14.1%00
goooboboooboboooon
gobooboobooboobooonn
goooboooboooboobooon
obOoDb236% 00000000000
16.6%000000000000000
oo0o00oOooboOoOooobOOooLEDO
goobooooobooboboobooo
gopooLEDDOooboOooooDoobooon
ggogoooo

ooooooooooooooong
ooooon

goooboobooboobooooon
goooboboooboboooon
gooobooboooobooboon
goobMOOOOO

Six months ended 30 June
Oo0en300 0600

2016 2015
20160 20150
RMB’000 RMB’000 Growth rate
gooOoo gooo oog
Sales revenue from PRC gooooooooo
NVC brand oodad 1,073,119 947,780 13.2%
Non-NVC brand ooooagd 137,967 157,992 -12.7%
Subtotal oo 1,211,086 1,105,772 9.5%
Sales revenue from ooooooo
international market oooo
NVC brand ooood 178,718 190,370 -6.1%
Non-NVC brand oooog 372,945 476,105 -21.7%
Subtotal oo 551,663 666,475 -17.2%
Total oo 1,762,749 1,772,247 -0.5%
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Revenue by LED lighting products and non-LED lighting products [ LEDO 000 0 LEDO OO0 000 [0

The table below sets forth our revenue from LED lighting products O O OO OLEDO OO OO OLEDDO OO
and non-LED lighting products and the growth rate of eachitem. OO0O0OOOOOOOOOOOO

Six months ended 30 June
goen300 0600

2016 2015

20160 20150
RMB’000 RMB’000 Growth rate
oogoo gooo ooo
LED lighting products LEDODO OO 1,176,887 604,264 94.8%
Non-LED lighting products OLEDODODOO 585,862 1,167,983 -49.8%
Total oo 1,762,749 1,772,247 -0.5%

Cost of Sales 0000

Cost of sales mainly consists of the cost of raw materials, OO OO0 OO0 O0OO0O0OO0OO0OOOO0OO0O0ONO
outsourced manufacturing costs, direct and indirect labor costs QO OO0 00000000 OODOOO

and indirect costs. Major raw materials of the Group include iron,
aluminum and alloys, fluorescent powder, glass tubes, electronics
components and LED packaged chips. Outsourced manufacturing
costs primarily include the cost of purchased semi-finished
products and finished products produced by other manufacturers
and used in the production of our products. Indirect costs primarily
include water, electricity, depreciation and amortisation and others.
The table below sets forth the composition of our cost of sales:
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Six months ended 30 June
goens3o0Oedn
2016 2015
20160 20150
Percentage in Percentage in
RMB’000 revenue (%) RMB’000 revenue (%)
oooo0o 0O0000(%) o000 DO0000(%)
Raw materials ooo 707,830 40.2% 889,459 50.2%
Outsourced gooogo
manufacturing costs 415,973 23.6% 253,843 14.3%
Labor costs oooo 127,452 7.2% 162,146 9.1%
Indirect costs oooo 55,448 3.1% 85,860 4.9%
Total cost of sales ooooon 1,306,703 74.1% 1,391,308 78.5%

During the Period under Review, the cost of sales as a percentage
to revenue decreased from 78.5% to 74.1%, the gross profit
margin increased from 21.5% to 25.9% accordingly, mainly due
to the comprehensive cost saving measures adopted by the
Group, including public procurement and tendering, strengthening
inventory management, restructuring of the production flow, and
the implementation of “Amoeba” operating and lean production,
etc., which have significantly controlled the costs and improved
the overall gross profit margin level.

Gross Profit and Gross Profit Margin

Gross profit is calculated as the net value of sales revenue less
cost of sales.

During the Period under Review, gross profit of the Group was
RMB456,046,000, representing an increase of 19.7% as compared
with the Corresponding Period, gross profit margin increased
from 21.5% to 25.9%. The gross profit and gross profit margin by
segments are as follows:

goobbobooooooobono
0785%000741%0000C0C0C0
21.5%000259% 000000000
gobooboooboobooooboo
gooooobbbooooooooooo
gooobobooooooooooooo
gooooobobbooooooooo

goooon

gobboboooooobbobooooon
gogbooboobooboobooonb
45,0460 00000 0O0O19.7%000

0021.5%000259% 0000000
gooooooobo
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The table below shows the gross profit and gross profit
margin by product segments (luminaire, lamp and lighting
electronic):

g

(1)

gboobooboooooboo
gooooooooooooo

Six months ended 30 June

ooeosoooenn

2016 2015

20160 20150
RMB’000 (%) RMB’000 (%)
good (%) good (%)
Luminaire products oooo 361,142 29.8% 254,369 24.0%
Lamp products oooo 71,439 16.1% 103,226 17.8%

Lighting electronic oooooo

products 23,465 21.5% 23,344 17.8%
Total o0 456,046 25.9% 380,939 21.5%

During the Period under Review, gross profit margin
of luminaire products increased by 5.8% to 29.8% as
compared with the Corresponding Period, which is
mainly attributable to the implementation of effective
and comprehensive cost reduction measures and the
contribution from increasing proportion of household lighting
products with higher gross profit margin. Gross profit
margin of lamp products decreased by 1.7% to 16.1% as
compared with the Corresponding Period, which is mainly
due to the unsaturated production capacity and decline
in selling price of traditional lamp products. Gross profit
margin of lighting electronic products increased by 3.7% to
21.5% as compared with the Corresponding Period, which
is attributable to the Group’s comprehensive cost reduction
measures, as well as the impacts of the product structure
adjustment and the fluctuation of exchange rate.
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odoooon

(ii) The table below shows the gross profit and gross profit (/) dood0ooooooooooono
margin by geographical locations and NVC brand products oodoobooooooooooo
and non-NVC brand products: ooooooo

O0oOoooooono 20te00000 17
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(i) The table below sets forth the gross profit and gross profit
margins of LED lighting products and non-LED lighting

= o '. i 1
I 3 N

b\

(i) 0OO0OO0OLEDOOOOOOOLED

goooooobobooo

products:
Six months ended 30 June
goed3o0dCOedn
2016 2015
20160 20150
RMB’000 (%) RMB’000 (%)
good (%) good (%)
LED lighting products  LEDO O OO 337,093 28.6% 151,806 25.1%
Non-LED lighting OLEDODODOO
products 118,953 20.3% 229,133 19.6%
Total gross profit ooo 456,046 25.9% 380,939 21.5%
Other income and gains ooobooog
Our other income and gains mainly consist of trademark license OO OO00000O0O0O0O000O00O00O0O

fees, rental income, gain on sales of scrap materials, gain on
disposal of items of property, plant and equipment, government
grants and interest income (the breakdown of other income and
gains is provided in note 5 to the interim condensed consolidated
financial statements on page 76 of this report). We received various
types of government grants as tax subsidies and incentives for
research and development activities and expansion of production
capacity of energy-saving lamp. Government subsidies are
provided by relevant authorities at their discretion, and may not
necessarily be recurring in nature. We licensed our trademark to a
limited number of related companies and a third party company at
one to three percent of the companies’ sales amount as trademark
license fees. During the Period under Review, other income and
gains were RMB32,537,000, representing a decrease of 24.3% as
compared with the Corresponding Period, which was mainly due to
the decrease in trademark license fees and government subsidies
during the Period under Review.
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Selling and distribution costs

Our selling and distribution costs mainly consist of freight costs,
advertising and promotion expenses, staff costs and others
including office expenses, custom clearance expenses, travelling
expenses, depreciation and amortisation, insurance fees and other
miscellaneous costs.

During the Period under Review, our selling and distribution
costs were RMB140,412,000, representing a decrease of 8.2%
as compared with the Corresponding Period, which was mainly
attributable to the decrease in marketing and promotion fee as
well as the control in office expenses. Our selling and distribution
costs as a percentage of revenue dropped from 8.6% to 8.0%.

Administrative and other expenses

Our administrative expenses mainly consist of staff costs,
amortisation and depreciation, research and development
expenses, office expenses and others, which mainly include
taxes, audit fees, other professional fees, bad debt provision and
miscellaneous items. These taxes mainly include land use tax
and stamp duty in connection with our administrative functions.
Other expenses mainly consist of losses on disposal of property,
plant and equipment and scrap materials, impairment loss of
property, plant and equipment, donation, exchange losses and
other miscellaneous expenses.

During the Period under Review, our administrative expenses
were RMB167,724,000, representing a decrease of 10.0% as
compared with the Corresponding Period. The decrease was
mainly attributable to the decrease in staff costs and the legal
consultation fees as compared with the Corresponding Period.
Our administrative expenses as a percentage in revenue decreased
from 10.5% to 9.5%.

odoooon

googooog

goooboooboobooboobo
goboobboobooboooboo
goboooboboooobooooo
goooooboobobooo

gbobobboooooobooboob
O00082%0 000 O0140,4120
gobooobogooooboobooo
goobooboobooboooobo
ooooboboooboboboooo
8.6%0 0 O 8.0%0

uoooooogano

goboobooobooboobooon
goobooobobooobobooooo
goboooobobooobooobob
gooobooobooboooboon
oooobobooobobooooo
gbgoobobooooooobobonob
gogoboobooooboboooooboo
gooboobobooobobooooo
goooooobboo

goobooboooobooboon
10.0%00000167,7240 00000
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10.5%0 0 0 9.5%0
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Profit for the Period (including Profit Attributable to Non-
controlling Interests)

Due to the factors mentioned above, our net profit for the
period (including profit attributable to non-controlling interest) was
RMB98,258,000 during the Period under Review.

Exchange Differences on Translation of Foreign
Operations

During the Period under Review, our exchange differences on
translation of foreign operations were RMB10,277,000. These
exchange differences primarily arose from the translation of the
financial statements of the Company and the overseas subsidiaries
which are denominated in foreign currencies.

Profit Attributable to Owners of the Parent for the Period
Due to the factors mentioned above, profit attributable to owners
of the parent for the period was RMB82,140,000 during the Period

under Review.

Profit Attributable to Non-controlling Interests for the
Period

During the Period under Review, profit attributable to non-
controlling interests for the period was RMB16,118,000.

odoooon

uogboboobooobbooobo
g

goboboooobooboboobooo
goobooooboooobooboogon
098,25680 0 0O
gooooooooooon
goobooboooobooboon
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Cash Flow and Liquidity

Cash flows ogooo

ogoogodn

The table below sets out selected cash flow data from our OO 000 0OO0OOOOOODOOOO

consolidated statement of cash flows. goooao

gooon

Six months ended 30 June
O0oen300 0600

2016 2015
20160 20150
RMB’000 RMB’000
oooo oooo
Net cash flows generated from gooooo
operating activities gooodao 108,618 129,621
Net cash flows used in gooogo
investing activities oooogo (217,653) (240,447)
Net cash flows generated from goooood
financing activities oooooao 237,698 81,909
Net increase/(decrease) in gooooooog
cash and cash equivalents oomooooo 128,663 (28,917)
Cash and cash equivalents at 00oooooooo
beginning of period 917,953 796,694
Effect of foreign exchange rate oooooood
changes, net 8,917 8,177
Cash and cash equivalents as 00o0ooooooooo
stated in the statement of o0oooooooooo
financial position and cash flows 1,055,533 775,954

As at the end of the Period under Review, the cash and bank O 000 0OOO0O0ODOOOOOOOOO
balances of the Group were mainly denominated in RMB, HK$, O 0000000 O0OOOODDOO0OO
GBP, BRL and US$. The RMB is not freely convertible intoother OO 0000000 O0OODOOOOO
currencies, however, under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange OO0 0O OO 0O0OODOOOOO0O0ODO
Control Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and O O O0O0O00O OO OO OOO0OOO
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations, the Group ispermitted O[O 00000000 0OOODOOO0O
to exchange RMB for other currencies through banks authorised OO O0O0OO0O0O0O0OOO0OOOOOO

to conduct foreign exchange business.
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Liquidity
Net current assets and working capital sufficiency

The table below sets out our current assets, current liabilities and
net current assets as at the end of the Period under Review.

odoooon

ggd
ooooooooooonnn

gobooboooboboogoboonn
goooooboobbobog

30 June 31 December
2016 2015
20160 20150
601 300 120 310
RMB’000 RMB’000
oooag oooo
CURRENT ASSETS ooogag
Inventories 0og 426,897 495,450
Trade and bills receivables Oooooooooo 1,239,411 1,189,914
Prepayments, deposits and gooooooad
other receivables oooooa 353,166 344,778
Income tax recoverable ooooo 4,978 7,998
Other current assets oooooo 22,585 16,515
Restricted bank balances and 0o0oo0oooooo
short-term deposits oooo 250,949 660,307
Cash and cash equivalents Ooooooooo 1,055,533 903,849
3,353,519 3,618,811
Assets of disposal group classified oooooooooooo
as held for sale - 27,005
Sub-total current assets oooooo 3,353,519 3,645,816
CURRENT LIABILITIES oooad
Trade and bills payables ooooooooo 580,361 611,498
Other payables and accruals 0oooooooooo 520,491 483,032
Interest-bearing loans oooo 44,911 174,122
Government grants oooo 2,024 2,034
Income tax payable ooooo 43,642 38,381
Convertible bonds ooooo
— derivative component ooooooo 11,688 -
1,203,117 1,309,067
Liabilities of disposal group ogooooooad
classified as held for sale ogooao - 4,704
Sub-total current liabilities gooooad 1,203,117 1,313,771

gooooooooo 201600000
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As at 30 June 2016 and 31 December 2015, the total net
current assets of the Group amounted to RMB2,150,402,000 and
RMB2,332,045,000 respectively, and the current ratio was 2.79
and 2.78 respectively. In light of our current liquidity position,
the unutilised banking facilities available to the Group and our
projected cash inflows generated from operations, the Directors
believe that we have sufficient working capital for our present
requirements and for the next 12 months.

Capital Management

The following table presents our gearing ratios as at the end of the
Period under Review.

02016060 3000 20150120 310 0 O
gboooooooboogoboonn
2,150,4020 0 0 0 0 02,332,0450 00
gooboog2zryonzre0oooon
ggoooboboboooooooooobo
goooboboobobooooboon
goooboboobooboooooooooboo
ooobobOoi1200000oogoon

gogg

goooboboobobooooboon
ggag

30 June 31 December
2016 2015
20160 20150
60 300 120 310
RMB’000 RMB’000
oogo oooo
Interest-bearing loans oooag 44,911 174,122
Total debt oooo 44,911 174,122
Less: cash and cash equivalents and oo0ooooooooo
short-term deposits oooad
(excluding restricted bank balances) ooooooooooo (1,251,406) (1,523,502)
Net debt oood N/ADOO NADO OO
Total equity attributable to owners Ooo0ooooooooo
of the parent 2,839,837 3,316,907
Gearing ratio gooooad N/AOOO NA DO OO
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The primary goal of our capital management is to maintain the
stability and growth of our financial position. We regularly review
and manage our capital structure and make corresponding
adjustments, after taking into consideration changes in economic
conditions, our future capital requirements, prevailing and
projected profitability and operating cash flows, projected capital
expenditures and projected strategic investment opportunities.
We manage our capital through monitoring our gearing ratio
(which is calculated as net debt divided by the total equity
attributable to owners of the parent). Net debt is the balance
of interest-bearing loans less cash and short-term deposits
(excluding restricted bank balances).

Inventories

The balance of inventories represented our balance of stock of raw
materials, work in progress and finished goods as at the end of
the Period under Review. We monitor our inventories on a regular
basis.

More details about the inventories are provided in note 13 to the
interim condensed consolidated financial statements on page 83
of this report.

Trade and bills receivables, prepayment, deposits and
other receivables and restricted bank balances and
short-term deposits

Trade receivables of the Group represented proceeds receivable
from sale of goods. The Group’s trading terms with its customers
are mainly on credit, except for new customers where payment in
advance is normally required. The credit periods generally range
from 30 to 180 days for major customers. Each customer has a
maximum credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables and has a credit control department
to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by
senior management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that
the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large number of diversified
customers, there is no significant concentration of credit risk. The
Group does not hold any collateral or other credit enhancements
over its trade receivable balance. Overdue interests of several trade
receivables are calculated at an annual interest rate of 12%.

odoooon
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Included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables are the
amounts due from a company of RMB550,924,000 (31 December
2015: RMB550,924,000) in aggregate arising from the rights held
by the Group pursuant to several letters of counter guarantee
issued by the company which was also one of the borrowers of
the bank loans. The Directors wer,are the
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As a lessor, we leased plants and offices under operating lease
arrangements with leases negotiated for terms ranging from one
to five years. The terms of the leases generally require tenants to
pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the prevailing market conditions. As at the end of the
Period under Review, our total future minimum lease receivables
under non-cancellable operating leases with our tenants falling due
in the next five years will be RMB3,700,000.

Continuing Connected Transactions

During the Period under Review, the continuing connected
transactions of the Group do not exceed the annual caps previously
disclosed in the relevant announcements of the Company.

Mergers, Acquisitions and Investments

On 3 February 2016, Hong Kong NVC Lighting (“NVC HK”), the
Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, has entered into the equity
transfer agreement (the “Equity Transfer Agreement”) with Gold
Interact Investment Limited (the “Transferor”). Pursuant to the
Equity Transfer Agreement, NVC HK agrees to acquire, and the
Transferor agrees to sell, 75% equity interest in LED Holdings
Limited (“LED Holdings”). The total final consideration for the
acquisition is determined to be RMB508,725,000. The major asset
of LED Holdings is 50% equity interest in Zhongshan NVC, and
the Company holds effectively 75% equity interest in LED Holdings
after the acquisition.

In March 2016, World Through Investments Limited, the Company’s
wholly-owned subsidiary, transferred its 100% equity interest in
Zhangpu Phoebus to an independent third party vendor in the price
of RMB30,146,000. Since then, Zhangpu Phoebus is no longer a
subsidiary of the Company.

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED Interim Report 2016

(e
- % :

goobobobooobobboboan
oooboooooooooot1gsdn
gooobobooobobooooon
goboboooboobobbooanb
gobbooboobooboogonn
gopoosgoobooooobobooobn
3,7000 00O

ogogo

goooboboobobooooboon
gbooobobooboboobab
gooon

ogoogodn

2016020300 000000000
ooooooooobmoooomo
goooooboooomoboomoon
go0ooo@MmooooooOdooon
gobooobooboobooan
gboboboboboboomaonn
O0Mmvs% O 00000000Ooon
gooooooses,72s000oooO
OO0D0DQCO0OOoOoOoos%oooon
00000 0oDOO0obDOo0oo0OoDgrs%
good

gz201603000 000000000
gboooboboobobooobab
100%00000030,1460 00000
ooboobooooboobooon
ggooooboobooboo



Management Discussion and Analysis

In April 2016, Huizhou NVC, the Company’s wholly-owned
subsidiary, established NVC Kitchenware with natural persons.
Huizhou NVC contributed RMB2,550,000 and held 51% equity
interest in NVC Kitchenware. Since then, NVC Kitchenware has
become a non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company.

On 4 May 2016, Huizhou NVC, the Company’s wholly-owned
subsidiary, signed a partnership agreement with Zhuhai Henggin
Lemon Net Technology Co., Ltd. (the “General Partner”) to
establish a limited partnership. Huizhou NVC will contribute
RMB500,000,000 in cash, while the General Partner will contribute
RMB100,000,000 in cash, representing respectively 83.33% and
16.67% of the total investment in the limited partnership.

On 18 May 2016, the Board approved Huizhou NVC to contribute
a total of RMB8,000,000 into Huizhou Thorled-Opto Co., Ltd.* (O
0000O000o000dao) (“Huizhou Thorled-Opto”) with ETIC on a
pro rata basis. The amount of capital contribution to be made by
Huizhou NVC and ETIC were RMB3,920,000 and RMB4,080,000,
respectively. Since the capital contribution is on a pro rata basis,
Huizhou Thorled-Opto will remain held as to 49% by Huizhou NVC.
Upon completion of the capital contribution by its shareholders, the
total paid-in capital of Huizhou Thorled-Opto was increased from
RMB48,000,000 to RMB56,000,000.

Saved as disclosed in the above, the Group made no acquisition,
merger or sale of subsidiaries and associates during the Period
under Review.
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Issue of New Shares Under General Mandate

On 23 May 2016, the Company and the subscriber Mr. Ye Yong
entered into a subscription agreement. Pursuant to the subscription
agreement, Mr. Ye Yong conditionally agreed to subscribe and the
Company conditionally agreed to allocate and issue in aggregate
a total of 85,000,000 subscription shares. The subscription price
of HK$0.83 per subscription share represents a discount of
approximately 3.49% to the closing price of HK$0.86 per share as
quoted on the Stock Exchange on 23 May 2016, being the date of
the subscription agreement; and a discount of approximately 4.60%
to the average of the closing prices of approximately HK$0.87 per
share as quoted on the Stock Exchange for the last five trading days
immediately before 23 May 2016, being the date of the subscription
agreement. The subscription shares represent approximately 2.72%
of the existing issued share capital of the Company and approximately
2.65% of the total issued share capital of the Company as enlarged by
the allotment and issue of the subscribed shares as at the date of the
subscription agreement. According to the par value of US$0.0000001
each share, the nominal value of the subscription shares is US$8.5
(approximately HK$65.98).

The Directors have considered various ways of raising additional
funds for future use and they consider that the issue of the
subscription shares is an appropriate means of raising additional
capital for the Company since the shareholder base of the
Company will be enlarged, the capital base of the Company can be
broadened at a relatively low cost compared to bank borrowings or
the issue of debt securities, and the financial position of the Group
will be improved for establishing and strengthening the existing and
future business of the Group. The Board considers that the terms
of the subscription agreement are on normal commercial terms
and are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company
and the shareholders as a whole.

The gross proceeds of the subscription will amount to approximately
HK$70,550,000. After deducting the relevant expenses, the
estimated net proceeds from the issue of the subscription shares
amount to approximately HK$70,000,000. The net price for each
subscription share is estimated to be approximately HK$0.824. The
Company intends to use the net proceeds for general corporate
and business development and working capital requirements. The
subscription has not completed as of the date of this report.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Use of Proceeds from the Global Offering

We did not use the proceeds from the Global Offering in a manner
different from those set out in the prospectus of the Company
dated 7 May 2010.

Significant Investment

As mentioned in the section headed “Mergers, Acquisitions and
Investments” on page 28 to page 29 of this report, Huizhou
NVC, the Company’s wholly-owned subsidiary, signed a
partnership agreement with the General Partner to establish a
limited partnership. Through the establishment of the limited
partnership, the Company will be able to benefit from a wealth
of attractive investment opportunities in the lighting industry and
achieving economies of scale and synergies. During the Period
under Review, the limited partnership has not yet commenced its
external investment. Apart from this, the Group had no significant
investment during the Period under Review.

As mentioned in the announcement of the Company dated 23
May 2016, the Board has approved the Company to establish
an investment fund in form of a limited partnership to engage
in investment in the distributors of the Company. The expected
source of fund for the investment will be the fund generated from
the daily operations of the Company. Apart from this, the Group did
not have any plan for significant investment or addition of capital
assets during the Period under Review.

Loans and Guarantee

The Group did not grant any loans to any entities, nor did it offer
any financial assistance to its associates or make any guarantee
for the facilities granted to its associates.

Event after the Period under Review

Huizhou NVC, the Group’s wholly-owned subsidiary, proposed
to invest RMB5,000,000 to establish a wholly-owned subsidiary
Bengbu NVC. Bengbu NVC is principally engaged in the
development, production and sale of luminaire, lamps, integrated
ceiling lamps, kitchen and bathroom appliances etc. As at the date
of this report, the registered capital is not fully paid.
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As disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated 6 July 2015, a
PRC bank (the “Second Bank”) commenced a court action in the PRC
against NVC China as a co-defendant. The Company has recently
received a judgment from the Chongqing First Intermediate People’s

Court (the “Second Judgment”), which, among other things, orders
that NVC China is jointly and severally liable with other co-defendants
for the payment of RMB35,497,000, plus interest and costs, to the
Second Bank. Please refer to the Company’s announcement dated
20 September 2016 for details. The Company has filed an appeal
against the Second Judgment with the Chongaqing Higher People’s
Court, and the outcome of the appeal is pending.

Contingent Liabilities
(@) As at 30 June 2016, contingent liabilities not provided for

in the interim condensed consolidated financial statements
were as follows:

30 June 31 December
2016 2015
20160 20150
60 300 120 310
RMB’000 RMB’000
goood gooo
(Unaudited) (Audited)
oooooo opoood
Purported guarantees givento banks 000000000000
and a finance company in connection OO0O0O00O00O00O0OO
with facilities granted to: oopoooono
2 PRC companies and 0000000004
Mrs. WU Lian, an individual oooooo 131,497 131,497

(b) The Group currently acts as defendant in lawsuits brought
by 2 PRC banks and a PRC finance company alleging
that the Group should assume guarantee liabilities and
interests according to purported guarantee agreements. The
Directors consider that the likelihood of the Group sustaining
further losses from the purported guarantees is remote, and
accordingly no provision for claims arising from the litigations
is considered necessary as at 31 December 2015 and 30
June 2016, save for the related legal and other costs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Pledge of Assets

As at 30 June 2016, save for those disclosed elsewhere in these
interim condensed consolidated financial statements, the following
assets of the Group were pledged, as applicable:

(1)

As at 30 June 2016, certain land use rights with aggregate
carrying amounts of RMB48,973,000 (31 December 2015:
RMB49,633,000) and certain buildings included in property,
plant and equipment with aggregate carrying amounts of
RMB242,728,000 (31 December 2015: RMB248,348,000)
were pledged for the Group’s applications of assets
preservation in certain PRC legal proceedings.

As at 30 June 2016, certain trade receivables with
carrying amounts of RMB42,430,000 (31 December 2015:
RMB22,153,000) and property in UK with aggregate
carrying amount of RMB45,536,000 (31 December 2015:
RMBNIil) were pledged to secure the bank borrowings.

In accordance with several letters of guarantee, deposits
with carrying amounts of RMB21,724,000 (31 December
2015: RMB20,258,000) were pledged for issuing letters of
guarantee.

The deposits with carrying amounts of RMB26,501,000 (31
December 2015: RMB26,501,000) were pledged for the
Group’s applications of assets preservation in certain PRC
legal proceedings.

Deposits with carrying amounts of RMB3,348,000 (31
December 2015: RMB4,613,000) were pledged for issuing
bank acceptance bills.

In accordance with agreements of deposits, deposits with
an aggregate carrying amount of RMB202,850,000 as at
31 December 2015 was pledged to a bank to secure bank
loans of subsidiaries of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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Employees

As at 30 June 2016, the Group had approximately 6,860
employees in total (831 December 2015: 7,125). During the
Period under Review, the relevant employee salary and benefit
expense was RMB257,211,000 (including share option expense of
RMB239,000), while our employee salary and benefit expense was
RMB292,726,000 (including share option expense of RMB36,000)
for the Corresponding Period. The Group regularly reviews
remuneration and benefits of its employees according to the relevant
market practice and individual performance of the employees. In
addition to basic salary, employees are entitled to other benefits
including social insurance contributions, employee provident fund
schemes, discretionary incentive and share option schemes. The
Group ensures that adequate training and professional development
opportunities are provided to all employees so as to satisfy their
career development needs.

Market Risks

We are exposed to various market risks in the ordinary course
of business. Our risk management strategy aims to minimise the
adverse effects of these risks to our financial results.

Foreign Currency Risk

We are exposed to transactional currency risk. Such risk arises
from sales or procurement by operating units in currencies other
than its functional currency. As a result, we are exposed to
fluctuations in the exchange rate between the functional currencies
and foreign currencies. During the Period under Review, the Group
had entered into several forward currency contracts in place to
hedge the foreign exchange exposure and did not experience
any material difficulties or negative impacts on our operations or
liquidity as a result of fluctuations on currency exchange rates.

Commodity Price Risk

We are exposed to fluctuations in the prices of raw materials
which are influenced by global as well as regional supply and
demand conditions. Fluctuations in the prices of raw materials
could adversely affect our financial performance. We did not enter
into any commodity derivative instruments to hedge the potential
commodity price changes.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

Liquidity Risk

We monitor our risk of having a shortage of funds by considering
the maturity of our financial instruments, financial assets and
liabilities and projected cash flows from operations. Our goal
is to maintain a balance between continuity and flexibility of
funding through the use of bank loans and other interest-bearing
loans. Our Directors have reviewed our working capital and
capital expenditure requirements and determined that we have no
significant liquidity risk.

Credit Risk

Our major credit risk arises from exposure to a substantial number
of trade and bills receivables and prepayments, deposits and other
receivables from debtors. We have policies in place to ensure that
the sales of products are made to customers with an appropriate
credit limit, and we have strict control over credit limits of trade
receivables. Our cash and short-term deposits are mainly deposited
with registered banks in Mainland China and Hong Kong. We also
have policies that limit our credit risk exposure to any financial
institutions. The carrying amounts of trade and bills receivables,
prepayments, and deposits and other receivables, cash and cash
equivalents and short term deposits included in the consolidated
statement of financial position represent our maximum exposure
to credit risk in relation to our financial assets. We have no other
financial assets which carry significant exposure to credit risk. In
2015, we entered into a number of one-year insurance contracts
with China Export & Credit Insurance Corporation, which covered
up to 85% of uncollectible receivables from PRC sales and 90%
uncollectible receivables from international sales during the period
from 1 December 2015 to 30 November 2016 with a maximum
compensation amount of RMB19,200,000 for PRC sales and
US$30,000,000 (equivalent to approximately RMB194,808,000)
for international sales. We purchased such insurance in order to
minimise our exposure to credit risk as we expand our business.
We plan to renew such insurance contracts when they become
due.
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Disclosure of Interests
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Interests and Short Positions of Substantial
Shareholders in the Shares and Underlying
Shares
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As at 30 June 2016, so far as the Directors and chief executives
of the Company are aware, the following shareholders (other than
Directors or chief executives of the Company) had 5% or more
interests or short positions in the issued shares and underlying
shares of the Company which were recorded in the register

02016060300 0000000000
gooboooboobooobooboboo
gsse0opoooooooooon
goooobooooooooobbo
gooboboooooooooobobn

required to be maintained by the Company pursuant to Section

336 of the SFO:

Oo0s%0000000000

Number of
shares or Percentage
underlying of the total
Name of shareholder Nature of interests Class of shares shares issued shares
ooo oooooo
gooao gooo gooo goooog oooooo
Elec-Tech International (H.K.) Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 845,746,000 (L) 27.03%
Company Limited goooo oog (Note 1)
oooooooooooooa oooin
ETIC Interest of corporation Ordinary shares 845,746,000 (L) 27.03%
oooo controlled by the ooo (Note 2)
substantial shareholders oooao
goooooooooooo
SB Asia Investment Fund I L.P. Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 578,711,000 (L) 18.50%
goooo goo
Guoyuan Investment Fund Series SPC Investment manager Ordinary shares 540,540,540 (L) 17.28%
(Acting on behalf of Guoyuan Global 0000 oon (Note 3)
Income Fund Segregated Portfolio) oonaso
Guoyuan Investment Fund Series SPC (0 0
Guoyuan Global Income Fund Segregated
Portfoliod O )
Schneider Electric Asia Pacific Limited Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 288,371,000 (L) 9.22%
goooo goo
Schneider Electric Industries SAS Interest of corporation Ordinary shares 288,371,000 (L) 9.22%
controlled by the oog (Note 4)
substantial shareholders ooo40o
goooooooooooo
Schneider Electric SA Interest of corporation Ordinary shares 288,371,000 (L) 9.22%
controlled by the ong (Note 4)
substantial shareholders ooo4a0
0ooooooooooooo
GS Direct, L.L.C. Beneficial owner Ordinary shares 177,351,000 (L) 5.67%
goooo ooo
The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. Interest of corporation Ordinary shares 187,335,757 (L) 5.99%

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED

controlled by the
substantial shareholders
joooooooobooo
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Notes:

(L) represents long position.

These shares are held by Elec-Tech International (H.K.) Company
Limited. As Elec-Tech International (H.K.) Company Limited is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of ETIC, ETIC is deemed to be interested
in all these shares.

These shares represent the maximum number of shares to be
issued and allotted upon exercise in full of the conversion rights
attaching to the convertible bonds issued by the Company pursuant
to the subscription agreement dated 20 May 2016 entered into
between the Company and Guoyuan Investment Fund Series SPC
(acting on behalf of Guoyuan Global Income Fund Segregated
Portfolio).

These shares are held by Schneider Electric Asia Pacific Limited.
As Schneider Electric Asia Pacific Limited is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Schneider Electric Industries SAS, which in turn is
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Schneider Electric SA, Schneider
Electric Industries SAS and Schneider Electric SA are deemed to
be interested in these shares.

These shares are held by GS Direct, L.L.C. (177,351,000 shares),
Goldman Sachs (Asia) Finance (5,725,000 shares), Goldman
Sachs International (3,987,000 shares), Goldman Sachs Asset
Management, L.P. (272,000 shares) and Goldman, Sachs & Co.
(757 shares), respectively. As all these companies are held by The
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc. directly or indirectly, The Goldman
Sachs Group, Inc. is deemed to be interested in the shares held
by the aforesaid companies in the Company.

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 June 2016, so far as the

Directors are aware, no other person (except the Directors and

chief executives of the Company) or corporation had 5% or more

interests or short positions in the shares and underlying shares of

the Company which were recorded in the register required to be

maintained by the Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.
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0o0ooooooooo201e0502000
Guoyuan Investment Fund Series SPQ1 0
[0 Guoyuan Global Income Fund Segregated
PortfolioD OOOOODOOODOODOODO
goobooooboooboboooboobo
goooooooooooooo

0 0O O 0O 0OSchneider Electric Asia
Pacific Limitedd 0O O Schneider Electric
Asia Pacific Limitedd Schneider Electric
Industries SASO 0 O O O O OO O
Schneider Electric Industries SASO O
Schneider Electric SAD 0 0000 0OO
0 O Schneider Electric Industries SASO
Schneider Electric SAD OO OOO0OOOO
coooo

00000 0O OdGS Direct, L.L.C.O
0177,351,0000 O Goldman Sachs
(Asia) Financel [0 5,725,000 O Goldman
Sachs Internationald O 3,987,0000 O
Goldman Sachs Asset Management, L.P.
0 0 272,0000 O Goldman, Sachs & Co.
0075700 0000000ODOThe
Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.0 00000
0000 The Goldman Sachs Group, Inc.
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gooobobuooboooboono
200lc0e0 30000000000 ogn
goobobooobobooboooon
oooobobboboO0oo0oboOoosse
goooboobooboobooooon
oooooooos%ooooooon

uo

0000000000 201te00onog

37



38

Disclosure of Interests
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Interests and Short Positions of Directors and
Chief Executives in the Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures

As at 30 June 2016, none of the Directors or chief executives of the
Company have or are deemed to have interests or short positions
in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company and
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the
SFO) which were required to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the
SFO (including interests or short positions which they were taken
or deemed to have under such provisions of the SFO), or recorded
in the register required to be maintained pursuant to Section 352
of Part XV of the SFO, or which were otherwise required to be
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
provisions of the Model Code.

Controlling Shareholders

During the Period under Review, the Company did not have any
controlling shareholder.
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Share Option Scheme

A share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
conditionally approved and adopted at an extraordinary general
meeting held on 27 April 2010. The purpose of the Share Option
Scheme is to provide the Company with a means of incentivising
and retaining employees, encouraging employees to work towards
enhancing the value of the Company and promoting the long-
term growth of the Company. This scheme will link the value
of the Company with the interests of the participants, enabling
participants and the Company to develop together and promoting
the Company’s corporate culture. The Directors may, at their
discretion, invite any Directors (including executive Directors, non-
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors),
employees and advisors, consultants, distributors, contractors,
contract manufacturers, agents, customers, business partners
and service providers of any member of the Group who the Board
considers, in its sole discretion, have contributed or will contribute
to the Group to participate in the Share Option Scheme. The period
within which the options must be exercised shall be determined
by the Directors at the time of grant and such period must expire
no later than 10 years from the date when the Board resolves to
make the offer of options to the grantees. All outstanding options
shall lapse when the grantee is dead or retired, the employment of
the grantee ceases or where the grantee is no longer an employee
of the Group.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme or any other share option schemes adopted by the
Company shall not exceed 10% (the Company may refresh the
10% limit in certain conditions) of the aggregate of the shares in
issue on the listing date or 30% of the shares in issue from time
to time. The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant under the
Share Option Scheme or any other share option scheme adopted
by the Company in any 12-month period must not exceed 1%
of the shares in issue. Any further grant of options which would
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Disclosure of Interests
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result in the number of shares issued as aforesaid exceeding
the said 1% limit requires shareholders’ prior approval with the
relevant participant and his associates abstaining from voting. At
the time of grant of the options, our Company may specify any
minimum period(s) for which an option must be held before it can
be exercised. The Share Option Scheme does not contain any
such minimum period.

The subscription price for the shares the subject of the options
shall be no less than the highest of (a) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the daily quotation sheet issued by the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant; (b) the average closing price of the
shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued by the Stock
Exchange for the five Stock Exchange business days immediately
preceding the date of grant; and (c) the nominal value of a share
upon its issue. The amount payable by a grantee on acceptance of
a grant of options is US$1. The Share Option Scheme will expire
on the date of the tenth anniversary of the adoption of the Share
Option Scheme. Further details of the Share Option Scheme are
set out in the prospectus of the Company dated 7 May 2010.

During the Period under Review, no option has been granted under
the Share Option Scheme.

Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted the pre-IPO share option scheme (the “Pre-
IPO Share Option Scheme”) approved by the Board on 15 October
2006 and amended on 23 December 2009 and 24 March 2010.
The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme is to assist the
Company in attracting, retaining and motivating key employees,
Directors, consultants and strategic suppliers. The aggregate
number of shares subject to the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme
is 240,429,000 shares, representing 8.11% of the issued share
capital of the Company following the initial public offering.
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Options have been granted under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme and shall expire no later than 10 years from the date
the Board resolves to make the offer of options to the grantees.
Options granted to grantees under the Pre-IPO Share Option
Scheme shall vest immediately to the grantees, or vest to the
grantees at a rate not more than 25% of each such grant for each
year commencing from the date when the grantees can exercise
such options granted to them. The exercise price of these share
options was determined by the Board with reference to the market

O oo ooooooo
ODOoooogogoogoooag

value of the Company’s ordinary shares and the Company’s equity
value.

In the event that the Board allows a grantee to exercise anoption OO UOUOOOO0DOOO0OODOOOOO
granted under this Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme by delivering O UOOOOOOOOODOOOOODODO
shares previously owned by such grantee and unless otherwise OO 0O0OOOO0O0OOOOOOOO0O
expressly provided by the Board, any shares delivered whichwere O 0000000000000 0OO0OO
initially acquired by the grantee from the Company (uponexercise OO OO 0000000 O0DO0O0OO
of a share option or otherwise) must have been owned by the O0O0OOOOOOOOOOOOOOO
grantee at least six months as at the date of delivery. The Company 0O O 0000000000000 OO0
will not be obligated to deliver any shares unless and until it 000000000000 D0OOOOO0
receives full payment of the exercise or purchase price therefore O OOOOODO0OOOOOOOOOOO
and any related withholding obligations and any other conditons OO 00000000000 O0O0OO0
to exercise or purchase have been satisfied. Unless otherwise OO UOUOOOOOOOOOOOOOO
expressly provided, the Board may at any time eliminate or limita O 0O00O0O0OOOOO0OOOOOOOOO
grantee’s ability to pay the purchase or exercise price ofany option OO OO OOO0O0OODODOOOOODO
granted under this Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme by any methnod OO0 000000000 D0OOOOO0
other than cash payment to the Company. The Board maytakeall O0O0OO0OO0OO0O0O0OOOOOOOOO
actions necessary to alter the method of option exercise andthe OO UOUOUOODOOOOOO0OOOODN
exchange and transmittal of proceeds with respect to grantees OO0 O000O0DO0O0O0O0ODOOOOO0
resident in the PRC not having permanent residence inacountry OO 00000000 OO0OOO0OOO
other than the PRC in order to comply with applicable PRC foreign OO OO OOOO0OOO0O0OO0O0OOOODO
exchange and tax regulations. Further details of the Pre-IPOShare OO OO O0OOO0OOOOOOODOODO
Option Scheme are set out in the prospectus of the Company OO 0OOOOOOOODOOOOOOO
dated 7 May 2010. gzo1o0s50700000000
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As at 30 June 2016, details of outstanding options granted under [QO2016060300 0 0 0 0 000 OO
the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme are as follows:

gooobobooobobooobon

oo
Percentage
of the
number
of shares
outstanding
as at
Number of Number of 30 June 2016
shares shares to the total
outstanding outstanding shares issued
as at as at Exercise 020160
1 January 2016 30 June 2016 price 60300
020160 020160 (HKS per 0oooo
Relationship 1010 601300 share) goooo
Name of the grantee Class of shares  with the Group goooo ooooo 0000  Dateofgrant  Expiry date gooooo
0oooo 0ooo ooooooo 0ooo 0ooo oooooo ooo 0oo 0ooo
Others (including Share options Employees 6,200,000 - 21 24March2010 24 March 2016 -
senior management) goog and others 2010030240 2016030240
goopoooooooog poooo 1,000,000 1,000,000 21 24 March 2010 8 February 2017 0.032%
2010030240 201702080
Total
0o 7,200,000 1,000,000 0.032%

During the Period under Review, out of the share optionsgranted OO O0O0O0OO0OOOOOOOO0O
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, none of the share O 00000000 OOOOOOOO

options was exercised or cancelled.

ggg

During the Period under Review, out of the share options granted O OO OO0 OO0O0OOOOOO0OO
under the Pre-IPO Share Option Scheme, 6,200,000 share options O 000 0O 0O O 0O O 6,200,0000 000
lapsed due to the expiration of the share option. The lapsedshare OO OO OOO0O0OOOOOOOOO

options are as follows:

Exercise price
(HK$ per share)

Number of share options lapsed good Date of grant Expiry date

goooood oooooao ooo ooo

6,200,000 2.1 24 March 2010 24 March 2016
20100 30 240 20160 30 240
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

Corporate Governance

The Directors are of the opinion that, during the Period under
Review, the Company had complied with the applicable principles
and codes provisions set out in the Code, except for Code
Provision A.2.1 which requires that the role of chairman and
chief executive officer should be separate and should not be
performed by the same person. Given that Mr. WANG Donglei
assumed the roles of both chairman and chief executive officer,
the Company deviated from this code provision. Mr. WANG
Donglei is the chairman and general manager of ETIC, which is the
controlling corporation of the largest shareholder of the Company,
Elec-Tech International (H.K.) Company Limited. Mr. WANG
Donglei has many years of experience in product research and
development, manufacturing and business management. The dual
role arrangement provides strong and consistent market leadership
and is critical for efficient business planning and decision making
of the Company. As all major decisions are made in consultation
with members of the Board and its other relevant committees,
and there are three Independent Non-executive Directors on the
Board offering independent perspectives, the Board is therefore
of the view that there are adequate safeguards in place to ensure
sufficient balance of powers within the Board. The Board will also
continue to review and monitor the practices of the Company for
the purposes of complying with the Code and maintaining a high
standard of corporate governance practices of the Company. Save
as disclosed above, the Company had fully complied with the
principles and code provisions as set out in the Code.

Model Code for Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct
regarding directors’ securities transactions. Specific enquiry has
been made to all Directors, and all the Directors have confirmed
that they had complied with all relevant requirements as set out in
the Model Code during the Period under Review.
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Risk Management and Internal Controls

The Board continuously oversees the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems on an ongoing basis. During the
Period under Review, the Board, through the audit committee
of the Company, conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Group, including the adequacy of
resources, staff qualifications and experience, training programmes
and budget of the Group’s accounting and financial reporting
function.

The Company has established internal audit systems including the
internal audit department and the risk control department to review
and improve the Group’s internal control measures and oversee
the measures to be implemented effectively. They all report directly
to the chief executive officer. It is complementary to the duties of
the external auditor and plays an important role in the Company’s
internal governance.

After receiving the confirmation from the management to the Board
the effectiveness of these systems, the Board is of the view that
the Group’s risk management and internal control systems are
well-established, effective and adequate.

Audit Committee

The Company established an audit committee (the “Audit
Committee”) in compliance with the Listing Rules with written
terms of reference. The primary duties of the Audit Committee
include maintaining relationship with the auditor of the Group,
reviewing financial information of the Group, supervising the
financial reporting system, risk management and internal control
system of the Group, and the duties of corporate governance
designated by the Board. During the Period under Review, Mr. LIN
Ho-Ping has retired as a Non-executive Director with effect from
15 June 2016, therefore, he ceased to be the member of Audit
Committee. Ms. YANG Jianwen has been appointed as a member
of Audit Committee by the Board on the same date. Currently,
the Audit Committee consists of three members, namely, Non-
executive Director Ms. YANG Jianwen, Independent Non-executive
Director Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway and Independent Non-
executive Director Mr. WANG Xuexian, respectively. Mr. LEE Kong
Wai, Conway has been appointed as the chairman of the Audit
Committee. The Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed the
interim results for the six months ended 30 June 2016.

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED Interim Report 2016
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

Remuneration Committee

The Company established a remuneration committee (the
“Remuneration Committee”) in compliance with the Listing
Rules with written terms of reference. The primary duties of
the Remuneration Committee include reviewing and making
recommendations to the Board on the remuneration packages
of individual Executive Directors and senior management, the
remuneration policy and structure for all directors and senior
management, and establishing transparent procedures for
developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure
that no director or any of his/her associates will participate in
deciding his/her own remuneration. Ms. WU Ling has resigned as
an Independent Non-executive Director with effect from 25 August
2016, therefore, she ceased to be the member of Remuneration
Committee. Currently, the Remuneration Committee consists of
three members, namely, Non-executive Director Mr. ZHU Hai,
Independent Non-executive Director Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway
and Independent Non-executive Director Mr. WEI Hongxiong,
respectively. Mr. WEI Hongxiong has been appointed as the
chairman of the Remuneration Committee.

Nomination Committee

The Company established a nomination committee (the “Nomination
Committee”) in compliance with the Code with written terms of
reference. The primary duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the Board composition, developing and formulating
relevant procedures for the nomination and appointment
of directors, making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and succession planning of directors, and assessing
the independence of independent non-executive directors. Ms.
WU Ling has resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director
with effect from 25 August 2016, therefore, she ceased to be the
member of Nomination Committee. Mr. WEI Hongxiong has been
appointed as a member of Nomination Committee by the Board
on the same date. Currently, the Nomination Committee consists
of three members, namely, Executive Director Mr. WANG Donglei,
Independent Non-executive Director Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway
and Independent Non-executive Director Mr. WEI Hongxiong,
respectively. Mr. WANG Donglei has been appointed as the
chairman of the Nomination Committee.
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Strategy and Planning Committee

The Company established a strategy and planning committee (the
“Strategy and Planning Committee”) under the Board with written
terms of reference. The primary duty of the Strategy and Planning
Committee is to propose and formulate the strategic development
plan of the Company for the Board’s consideration. Ms. WU Ling
has resigned as an Independent Non-executive Director with effect
from 25 August 2016, therefore, she ceased to be the member
of Strategy and Planning Committee. Mr. XIAO Yu has been
appointed as a member of Strategy and Planning Committee by
the Board on the same date. Currently, the Strategy and Planning
Committee consists of three members, namely, Executive Director
Mr. WANG Donglei, Executive Director Mr. XIAO Yu and Non-
executive Director Mr. ZHU Hai, respectively. Mr. WANG Donglei
has been appointed as the chairman of the Strategy and Planning
Committee.

Independent Investigations Committee

To advance the internal investigations into matters involving
Mr. WU Changjiang, the former Executive Director and Chief
Executive Officer of the Company, the Company has established
an independent investigations committee (the “Independent
Investigations Committee”) under the Board. The Independent
Investigations Committee has been authorised by the Board
to exercise powers and perform duties on behalf of the Board
in relation to the conduct of the investigations into, among
other things, the alleged wrongdoing of Mr. WU Changjiang. The
Independent Investigations Committee has also been authorised
to consider and make recommendations to the Board with
respect to any potential proceedings arising from the internal
investigations. In connection with the Company’s investigations of
the alleged wrongdoing of Mr. WU Changjiang, the Independent
Investigations Committee has instructed a third-party service
provider to conduct a forensic review of related irregularities
and an internal controls assessment of the Company and its key
subsidiaries. The forensic review and internal controls assessment

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED Interim Report 2016
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Corporate Governance and Other Information

has been completed. Please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 17 July 2015 and 17 September 2015 for details.
During the Period of Review, Mr. LIN Ho-Ping has retired as a
Non-executive Director with effect from 15 June 2016, therefore,
he ceased to be the member of Independent Investigations
Committee. Ms. YANG Jianwen has been appointed as a member
of Independent Investigations Committee by the Board on the
same date. The Independent Investigations Committee currently
consists of four members, namely, Non-executive Director Ms.
YANG Jianwen, Independent Non-executive Director Mr. LEE
Kong Wai, Conway, Independent Non-executive Director Mr. WEI
Hongxiong and Independent Non-executive Director Mr. WANG
Xuexian, respectively.

Emergency Committee

The emergency committee of the Company is officially dissolved on
25 August 2016. The functions and duties of the said committee
shall be taken over by the Board.

Appointment and Resignation of Directors and
Change in Directors’ Information

From 1 January 2016 to the date of this report, the appointment
and resignation of Directors and changes in the Directors’
information of the Company are as follows:

Mr. LEE Kong Wai, Conway, has ceased to be an Independent
Non-executive Director of CITIC Securities Company Limited (a
company listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 6030, and the Shanghai Stock Exchange, stock code:
600030) with effect from May 2016.

Mr. LIN Ho-Ping has retired as a Non-executive Director, member
of Audit Committee and member of Independent Investigations
Committee with effect from 15 June 2016.
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Ms. YANG Jianwen has been appointed as a Non-executive
Director, member of Audit Committee and member of Independent
Investigations Committee with effect from 15 June 2016.

Mr. XIONG Jie has resigned as an Executive Director with effect
from 25 August 2016.

Ms. WU Ling has resigned as an Independent Non-executive
Director, member of Remuneration Committee, member of
Nomination Committee and member of Strategy and Planning
Committee with effect from 25 August 2016.

Mr. WEI Hongxiong has been appointed as a member of Nomination
Committee with effect from 25 August 2016.

Mr. XIAO Yu has been appointed as a member of Strategy and
Planning Committee with effect from 25 August 2016.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the
Company’s Listed Securities

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries had purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities during the Period
under Review.

Interim Dividend

The Board proposed not to declare an interim dividend for the six

months ended 30 June 2016 (Corresponding Period: no interim
dividend declared).
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Report on Review of Interim Financial Information
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SCOPE OF REVIEW

Except as explained in the basis for qualified conclusion paragraphs
below, we conducted our review in accordance with Hong Kong
Standard on Review Engagements 2410, “Review of Interim
Financial Information Performed by the Independent Auditor of
the Entity” (“HKSRE 2410”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants. A review of interim financial
information consists of making inquiries, primarily of persons
responsible for financial and accounting matters, and applying
analytical and other review procedures. A review is substantially
less in scope than an audit conducted in accordance with Hong
Kong Standards on Auditing and consequently does not enable us
to obtain assurance that we would become aware of all significant
matters that might be identified in an audit. Accordingly, we do not
express an audit opinion.

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED CONCLUSION

(@) Impairment of other receivables and uncertainties
relating to financial guarantee contracts

As set out in Note 18 to the interim condensed consolidated
financial statements, a subsidiary of the Company (the
“Subsidiary”) entered into several pledge and guarantee
agreements in 2013 and 2014 (the “Pledge and Guarantee
Agreements”) with certain banks in the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”), providing guarantees to the banks for
their loan facilities granted to certain borrowers. Counter
guarantees were provided by one of the borrowers of the
bank loans (the “Borrower”) to the Group. During 2014,
aggregate pledged time deposits of RMB550,924,000 had
been withdrawn by the banks due to default of the bank
loans under the guarantees of the Subsidiary.

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED Interim Report 2016
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Report on Review of Interim Financial Information

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED CONCLUSION
(continued)

(@)

Impairment of other receivables and uncertainties
relating to financial guarantee contracts (continued)

The Group initiated legal actions to claim the counter
guarantees provided by the Borrower. As at 31
December 2015 and 30 June 2016, other receivables of
RMB550,924,000 due from the Borrower were included in
“Prepayments, deposits and other receivables” in the interim
condensed consolidated statement of financial position as
set out in Note 14 to the interim condensed consolidated
financial statements. The directors are of the opinion that
an amount of RMB265,564,000 (the “Recoverable Amount”)
is recoverable as at 31 December 2015 and 30 June 2016,
and accordingly a provision for the unrecoverable amount
of RMB285,360,000 had been charged in profit or loss of
the Group since 2014 and up to 30 June 2016.

As set out in Note 18 to the interim condensed consolidated
financial statements, the Subsidiary also entered into
guarantee agreements with another PRC bank in 2013 (the
“Guarantee Agreement 1”) and a PRC finance company in
2014 (the “Guarantee Agreement 2”) respectively, providing
guarantees to the PRC bank and the PRC finance company
for their loan facilities granted to their borrowers. The
outstanding loans of RMB35,497,000 and RMB34,000,000
in relation to the Guarantee Agreements 1 and 2 were in
default in 2015 and 2014 respectively. The PRC bank and
the PRC finance company have taken legal actions against
the respective borrowers and the guarantors (including the
Subsidiary and the Borrower as guarantors) to recover the
loan balances and interests. The directors consider that the
likelihood of the Group sustaining losses from the Guarantee
Agreements 1 and 2 is remote as it is considered that the
loans had sufficient underlying securities including the
Borrower’s guarantees and the Subsidiary is only one of the
guarantors for the loans. As a result, the directors consider
that no provision thereon is considered necessary as at 31
December 2015 and 30 June 2016.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED CONCLUSION
(continued)

(a)

Impairment of other receivables and uncertainties
relating to financial guarantee contracts (continued)

However, as the legal proceedings are still in progress,
we are not able to assess the likely outcome of the legal
proceedings in respect of the amount that the Group would
recover from the Borrower’s assets as determined by the
court and the amount ultimately to be recovered from the
Borrower in connection with the Pledge and Guarantee
Agreements, and to determine if any provision arising
from the Guarantee Agreements 1 and 2 is necessary.
As a result, we are not able to ascertain the recoverability
of the Recoverable Amount due from the Borrower and
appropriateness of the provision respectively as at 31
December 2015 and 30 June 2016.

Any adjustments to the Recoverable Amount due from
the Borrower and any provision to be recognised as at
31 December 2015 and 30 June 2016 would have a
consequential impact on the Group’s net assets as at 30
June 2016, and the Group’s financial performance for the
six months ended 30 June 2016.

Had we been able to complete our review of the
Recoverable Amount due from the Borrower and provision
to be recognised as at 31 December 2015 and 30 June
2016, matters might have come to our attention indicating
that adjustments might be necessary to the interim financial
information.
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BASIS FOR QUALIFIED CONCLUSION
(continued)

(b) Provision for loss on financial guarantee contract
As set out in Note 18 to the interim condensed consolidated

financial statements, in addition to the agreements as
mentioned in the above paragraphs, the Subsidiary entered
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Report on Review of Interim Financial 'information

oooooooooo

BASIS FOR QUALIFIED CONCLUSION
(continued)

(b)  Provision for loss on financial guarantee contract
(continued)

However, as the legal proceedings are still in progress,
we are not able to assess the likely outcome of the legal
proceedings, and accordingly, we are not able to ascertain
whether any provision on the frozen bank balance as at
31 December 2015 and 30 June 2016, and any shortfall
between the amount to be ultimately settled by the Group
under the Guarantee Agreement 3 and the Subsidiary’s
frozen bank balance is required to be made as at 31
December 2015 and 30 June 2016.

Any provisions that should have been made as at
31 December 2015 and 30 June 2016 would have a
consequential impact on the Group’s net assets as at 30
June 2016, and the Group’s financial performance for the
six months ended 30 June 2016.

Had we been able to complete our review of the provisions
that should have been made as at 31 December 2015 and
30 June 2016, matters might have come to our attention
indicating that adjustments might be necessary to the
interim financial information.
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Report on Review of Interim Financial Information

QUALIFIED CONCLUSION

Except for the adjustments to the interim financial information that
we might have become aware of had it not been for the situation
described above, based on our review, nothing has come to
our attention that causes us to believe that the interim financial
information is not prepared, in all material respects, in accordance
with IAS 34.

OTHER MATTER

The comparative figures for the six months ended 30 June 2015
included in the interim financial information were not reviewed in
accordance with HKSRE 2410.

BDO Limited

Certified Public Accountants

Lam Siu Fung

Practising Certificate Number P0O5308

Hong Kong, 25 August 2016
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Six months ended 30 June
Ooded30dOe6end

2016 2015

20160 20150

RMB’000 RMB’000

agooao ogooo

Notes (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
iy gooooo oooooa

REVENUE oo 3 1,762,749 1,772,247
Cost of sales oooo (1,306,703) (1,391,308)
GROSS PROFIT oo 456,046 380,939
Other income and gains ooooooo 5 32,537 42,995

SelBriy And6 DB G, 39(
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
OO0000000000

Six months ended 30 June
O0oen3000600

2016 2015
20160 20150
RMB’000 RMB’000
gooo ogooo
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

gooogoo oobooon

PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD gooo 98,258 55,205
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME gooooad
Items that may be reclassified oooooooon
subsequently to profit or loss: ooooooo
Exchange differences on translation oopooooood
of foreign operations oooad (10,277) (1,542)
Fair value gain on available-for-sale gooooood
financial assets ooooooog 2,600 -
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME gooooooo
FOR THE PERIOD 90,581 53,663
Attributable to: ooooooo
Owners of the parent opoooono 74,626 16,195
Non-controlling interests gooogo 15,955 37,468
90,581 53,663
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

oooooooooon

30 June 31 December
2016 2015
20160 20150
60300 120310
RMB’000 RMB’000
oooo oooo
Notes (Unaudited) (Audited)
oo oooood ooooo
NON-CURRENT ASSETS ooooo
Property, plant and equipment opooooog 10 695,989 738,143
Prepaid land lease payments opooooo 11 48,098 48,758
Goodwill oo 21,161 21,161
Other intangible assets gooooo 311,406 294,974
Investments in associates 0oooooon 34,275 26,430
Investment in a joint venture oooooodo 26 100,000 -
Available-for-sale financial assets gooooooo 12 24,600 -
Deferred tax assets gooooo 53,764 51,567
Trade receivables with maturity oooooooon
more than one year oooooo 14 13,214 13,856
Prepayments for purchase of property, oooooooon
plant and equipment gooood 2,942 26,859
Total non-current assets gooooon 1,305,449 1,221,748
CURRENT ASSETS oooo
Inventories o0 13 426,897 495,450
Trade and bills receivables ooooooooo 14 1,239,411 1,189,914
Prepayments, deposits and opooooog
other receivables gooooo 14 353,166 344,778
Income tax recoverable ooooo 4,978 7,998
Other current assets goooog 22,585 16,515
Restricted bank balances and gopoooooo
short-term deposits oooo 14 250,949 660,307
Cash and cash equivalents oooooooo 1,055,533 903,849
3,353,519 3,618,811
Assets of disposal group classified ooooooog
as held for sale gooo - 27,005
Total current assets oooooag 3,353,519 3,645,816
Continued/... aad..
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
OO00o0o0ooooon

30 June 31 December
2016 2015
20160 20150
60300 120310
RMB’000 RMB’000
oooo oooo
Notes (Unaudited) (Audited)
oo oooooo goooo
CURRENT LIABILITIES oooo
Trade and bills payables oopooooooo 15 580,361 611,498
Other payables and accruals 0o0poooonoooo 520,491 483,032
Interest-bearing loans oooo 16 44,911 174,122
Government grants oooo 2,024 2,034
Income tax payable goooa 43,642 38,381
Convertible bonds - derivative component gooooboOoooooao 17 11,688 -
1,203,117 1,309,067
Liabilities of disposal group classified as held forsale 000000000000 - 4,704
Total current liabilities gooooo 1,203,117 1,313,771
NET CURRENT ASSETS goooag 2,150,402 2,332,045
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES ooooooon 3,455,851 3,553,793
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES oooog
Government grants oooo 13,917 14,419
Deferred tax liabilities gooooo 83,132 83,345
Convertible bonds - liability component gopoooooooo 17 417,801 -
Total non-current liabilities gopoooon 514,850 97,764
Net assets ooo 2,941,001 3,456,029
EQUITY oo
Equity attributable to owners of the parent gooooooooo
Issued capital 0oooo 2 2
Reserves oo 2,839,835 3,290,695
Proposed final dividend oooooooo - 26,210
2,839,837 3,316,907
Non-controlling interests gooooo 101,164 139,122
Total equity 0ono 2,941,001 3,456,029

gooooooooo 201600000
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\ Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
doddoodododonn

Six months ended 30 June
Ooded30d0e6end

2016 2015

20160 20150
RMB’000 RMB’000
oooo oooo
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

gooogo goobooo

Net cash flows generated from gooooao

operating activities gooooo 108,618 129,621
Net cash flows used in investing activities gooooad

opooogo (217,653) (240,447)

Net cash flows generated from gooooad

financing activities ooooono 237,698 81,909
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and gooooooo

cash equivalents 00mooooo 128,663 (28,917)
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period OO0 O0OO0O0OOO0OO 917,953 796,694
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net oooooooo 8,917 8,177
Cash and cash equivalents as stated ooooooo

in the statement of financial position oooooooag

and cash flows Ooo0ooooon 1,055,533 775,954
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Interim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

OOoooougooon

Six months ended 30 June 2016

002016060300 060 0
Attributable to owners of the parent
gooooooo
Employee
equity Proposed Non-
benefit final controlling
Share  Share  Equity  Other Shareholders' Statutory  reserve translation Retained ~dividend interests  Total
capital premium  reserve  reserve contribution  reserve 00D profits 0000 Total 0000 equity
ooooo 0000 Cooo  oooo oooo ooooo oooo gooo 0o 0o oo ooo
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'O00 RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
gooo 0000 oooo 0oooo pooo 0000 0ooD gooo 0000 booo 00DD Coooo
At 1 January 2016 201601010 2 1840716 (4,158) - 6,416 130452 4540  (92553) 1,405,213 26210 3316907 139,122 3,456,029
Proft for the period oooo - - - - - - - 82,140 - 8,140 16,118 98,258
Qther comprehensive income:  0O0OD0OO0
Exchange differences nooooo
on translation of 000o0o
foreign operations il - - - - - - - - - (10114 (163 (10,217)
Fair value gain on gooooo
avalable-for-sale 000000
financial assets - - - 2,600 - - - - - 2,600 - 2,600
Total comprehensive gooooo
income for the period il - - - 2,600 - - - 82,140 - 74626 15955 90,581
Transfer to statutory reseve 0O 0O0OO00 - - - - - 7,029 - (7,029) - - - -
Forfeiture of share options n0oooo - - - - - - (235) 235 - - - -
Employee share option ooooooo
anangements - - - - - - 29 - - 29 - 29
Acquisition of addition gooooo
interests in a subsidlary 000000 - [52572) - - - - - - - (525,725)  (26,347) (952,072
Capital contribution from nooooo
non-controling interest 0o - - - - - - - - - -4 244
Dividend paid to a gooocao
non-controling shareholder - - - - - - - - - - (30,0000  (30,000)
Transfer upon disposal of gooooo
a subsidiary 00000 - - - - - (767) - 767 - - - -
Dividend paid nooo - - - - - - - - (26,2100 (26,210) - (26,210)
At 30 June 2016 2016060 300
(Unaudited) 000000 2 1314991 (415 2,600 6416 136714 4553  (102667) 1,481,386 - 2839837 101,164 2,941,001
Continued/... oo..
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> terim Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
O0o0oooooodao

Six months ended 30 June 2016

020160 600 300 [0 60 []
Attributable to owners of the parent
0oo00o0o0oo
Employee
equity  Foreign Non-
Statutory ~ benefit  currency controlling
Share Share Equity  Shareholders'  reserve  reserve translation  Retained interests Total
capital  premum  reseve  contrbution 000 OOOO  reserve profits Totd 0O0O0O equity
g0 0OoO0O0 ©oOod gooo g0 0000 DO0DO Cooo oo oo good
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
gooo oooo odod gooo o0ooooc oooo oOooo o OoO0O DODO oOco o Oodo
At 1 January 2015 201501010 2 1866926  (4,158) 6416 114,921 5237 (106,165) 1,364,283 3247462 119,147 3,366,609
Profit for the period oooo - - - - - - - 17078 17078 38182 55205
Other comprehensive income: goooooo
Exchange differences on gooooo
translation of foreign gooono
operations oo - - - - - - (878) - (878) (064)  (1,542)
Total comprehensive income gooooo
for the period 0o - - - - - - (878) 17,073 16,195 37468 53,663
Transfer to statutory reserve goooooo - - - - (267) - - 267 - - -
Forfeiture of share options goooo - - - - - (748) - 748 - - -
Employee share option goooo
arrangements oo - - - - - 36 - - 36 - 36
Dividend paid to a non- goooo
controlling shareholder 0ooooo - - - - - - - - - (58,800)  (58,800)
At 30 June 2015 2015060300
(Unaudited) oooooo 2 1866926  (4,158) 6416 114654 4525 (107,043 1382371 3263693 97815 3,361,508
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

1.1

Basis of Preparation

These interim condensed consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the six months ended 30 June 2016 (the
“Period under Review”) have been prepared in accordance
with the applicable disclosure requirements of Appendix
16 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited and International
Accounting Standard 34 Interim Financial Reporting issued
by the International Accounting Standards Board. These
interim condensed consolidated financial statements are
presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values are rounded
to the nearest thousand ('000) except when otherwise
indicated.

The accounting policies and basis of preparation used in
the preparation of these interim condensed consolidated
financial statements are the same as those used in the
Group’s annual consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2015, except for the adoption
of the new and revised International Financial Reporting
Standards (“IFRSs”) (which also include International
Accounting Standards (“IASs”) and Interpretations).

These interim condensed consolidated financial statements
do not include all information and disclosures required in
the Group’s annual consolidated financial statements, and
should be read in conjunction with the Group’s annual
consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015.
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
O0O000ooooooo

1.2

Changes In Accounting Policies and
Disclosures

The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the
interim condensed consolidated financial statements are
consistent with those followed in the preparation of the
Group’s annual consolidated financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2015, except for the adoption of
new standards and interpretations effective as of 1 January
2016. The Group has not early adopted any other standard,
interpretation or amendment that has been issued but is
not yet effective.

The nature and the effect of these changes are disclosed
below. Although these new standards and amendments
apply for the first time in 2016, they do not have a material
impact on the annual consolidated financial statements of
the Group or the interim condensed consolidated financial
statements of the Group. The nature and the impact of each
new standard or amendment is described below:

IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

IFRS 14 is an optional standard that allows an entity, whose
activities are subject to rate-regulation, to continue applying
most of its existing accounting policies for regulatory
deferral account balances upon its first-time adoption
of IFRSs. Entities that adopt IFRS 14 must present the
regulatory deferral accounts as separate line items on the
statement of financial position and present movements
in these account balances as separate line items in the
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
The standard requires disclosure of the nature of, and risks
associated with, the entity’s rate-regulation and the effects
of that rate-regulation on its financial statements. IFRS 14 is
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016. Since the Group is an existing IFRS preparer and is
not involved in any rate-regulated activities, this standard
does not apply.
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
OO000d0oogoooao

1.2 Changes In Accounting Policies and 1.2 OO0 DO 0O O0O0OO0OOO
Disclosures (continued) [700

Amendments to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements:
Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests

The amendments to IFRS 11 require that a joint operator
accounting for the acquisition of an interest in a joint
operation, in which the activity of the joint operation
constitutes a business, must apply the relevant IFRS 3
Business Combinations principles for business combination
accounting. The amendments also clarify that a previously
held interest in a joint operation is not remeasured on
the acquisition of an additional interest in the same joint
operation if joint control is retained. In addition, a scope
exclusion has been added to IFRS 11 to specify that the
amendments do not apply when the parties sharing joint
control, including the reporting entity, are under common
control of the same ultimate controlling party.

The amendments apply to both the acquisition of the
initial interest in a joint operation and the acquisition of
any additional interests in the same joint operation and
are prospectively effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2016, with early adoption permitted.
These amendments do not have any impact on the Group
as there has been no interest acquired in a joint operation
during the period.
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Cons*olidated Financial Statements
OO000OO0oooooon

1.2 Changes In Accounting Policies and 1.2 DO DO O 0O0OO0OOO

Disclosures (continued) oo

Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38: Clarification oooooood1e00dOdoad
of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and oogoos8oooooog
Amortisation gooooooooad

The amendments clarify the principle in IAS 16 Property, gboooooboboogooon
Plant and Equipment and IAS 38 Intangible Assets that 1600 000000000000

gooobo3spgooooooog
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
O000000oooono
1.2 Changes In Accounting Policies and 1.2 DO DO O 0O0OO0OOO
Disclosures (continued) oo
IFRS 7 Financial Instruments: Disclosures goooooooozroood
(continued) agoooogon
(ii) Applicability of the amendments to IFRS 7 to interim (i) ooooooooooon
condensed financial statements ooooooooronon
oo
The amendment clarifies that the offsetting disclosure uoooooboboooogod
requirements do not apply to interim condensed dooooooooood
financial statements, unless such disclosures provide ooboobooooo
a significant update to the information reported in the dogooooooood
most recent annual report. This amendment must be dodoooooooooo
applied retrospectively. oo
IAS 19 Employee Benefits ogoooooo1euooon
The amendment clarifies that market depth of high quality gbodobodoobooboobn
corporate bonds is assessed based on the currency in goodooooboooooooo
which the obligation is denominated, rather than the country oooboboOo0oooooooboo
where the obligation is located. When there is no deep goooboooboobooobo
market for high quality corporate bonds in that currency, gooooobooboboOoOoOoggd
government bond rates must be used. This amendment goooooobooooa
must be applied prospectively.
IAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting Ob0O0oD0DO0o0oDs400000
0o
The amendment clarifies that the required interim god0oooobooboooon
disclosures must either be in the interim financial statements goooboooboobooobo
or incorporated by cross-reference between the interim goodoooooooooooaon
ooooooooooooooo
0o0o0oo0oooooooooao
ooopoooooooooogao
goooooooooooooo
0oooDooooooooogo
oopooooogo
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
OO000d0oogoooao

1.2 Changes In Accounting Policies and 1.2 00 0O 0O0OO0OO0OO0OO

Disclosures (continued) [700
These amendments do not have any impact on the Group. gdoooooooooooon
aoad
Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative JoooooOo1oooood
oo
The amendments to IAS 1 clarify, rather than significantly O0ooo0ooOoi1coooooo
change, existing IAS 1 requirements. The amendments OoooDooooooi1doao
clarify: oo0ooooooooooooad
oooooad
o The materiality requirements in IAS 1 a dooooooilgoood
ooo
J That specific line items in the statement(s) of profit g ooooboooooood
or loss and other comprehensive income and the gooooooooobod
statement of financial position may be disaggregated goono
o That entities have flexibility as to the order in which u gooooooooobod
they present the notes to financial statements gooooo
o That the share of other comprehensive income of u gooooooooobod
associates and joint ventures accounted for using uboooboobobood
the equity method must be presented in aggregate gooooooboooo
as a single line item, and classified between those goodooooooonod
items that will or will not be subsequently reclassified gobooogooon
to profit or loss
Furthermore, the amendments clarify the requirements gobooboobooboon
that apply when additional subtotals are presented in O00000000O0O0o0Oooa
the statement of financial position and the statement(s) ooooobobbobooooogo
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income. These Oo0Oooooz0teO10100 0O
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning ooooooboboboooooog
on or after 1 January 2016, with early adoption permitted. googouooobobooododadg

These amendments do not have any impact on the Group. ggno
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
O0O000ooooooo

12 0000000000
gy

1.2 Changes In Accounting Policies and

Disclosures (continued)

70

Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28
Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation
Exception

The amendments address issues that have arisen in
applying the investment entities exception under IFRS
10 Consolidated Financial Statements. The amendments
to IFRS 10 clarify that the exemption from presenting
consolidated financial statements applies to a parent entity
that is a subsidiary of an investment entity, when the
investment entity measures all of its subsidiaries at fair
value.

Furthermore, the amendments to IFRS 10 clarify that only a
subsidiary of an investment entity that is not an investment
entity itself and that provides support services to the
investment entity is consolidated. All other subsidiaries
of an investment entity are measured at fair value. The
amendments to IAS 28 Investments in Associates and
Joint Ventures allow the investor, when applying the equity
method, to retain the fair value measurement applied by the
investment entity associate or joint venture to its interests
in subsidiaries.

These amendments must be applied retrospectively and are
effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2016, with early adoption permitted. These amendments do
not have any impact on the Group as the Group does not
apply the consolidation exception.
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Seasonality of Operations

The principal operations of the Group are manufacture and
sales of lamp products, luminaire products and lighting
electronic products. Due to the seasonal nature of its
products, higher revenues and operation profits are usually
expected in the second half of the year rather than in the
first six months.

Revenue and Segment Information

Revenue represents the net invoiced value of goods sold,
after allowances for returns and trade discounts.

For management purposes, the Group is organised into
business units based on their products and services and
has three reportable operating segments as follows:

(@) Luminaire products segment:

Luminaire products represent a complete lighting
unit that consists of a lighting fixture, a lamp (namely
the light source such as a light bulb or tube) and a
lighting electronics device. The luminaire products
are sold as complete lighting units or units without
lamps and lighting electronics, based on the needs
of end customers;

(b) Lamp products segment:

Lamp products represent a range of light bulbs and
tubes for compact fluorescent lamps, HID lamps,
fluorescent lamps, halogen lamps and LED lamps;
and

Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
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Revenue and Segment Information

(continued)
(c) Lighting electronic products segment:

Lighting electronic products represent electronic
transformers, electronic and inductive ballasts for
fluorescent, LED and HID lamps, and HID ballast
boxes.

Management monitors the results of the Group’s operating
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions
about resources allocation and performance assessment.
Segment performance is evaluated based on reportable
segment profit or loss, which is a measure of adjusted profit
or loss before income tax. The adjusted profit or loss before
income tax is measured consistently with the Group’s profit
or loss before income tax except that interest income,
finance costs, share of results of associates, unallocated
income and gains as well as head office and corporate
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Intersegment sales and transfers are transacted with
reference to the selling prices used for sales made to third
parties at the then prevailing market prices.

Since total assets, liabilities and capital expenditures for
each reportable segment are not regularly provided to
the chief operating decision maker, the directors are of
the opinion that the disclosure of such amounts is not
necessary.
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
OO000d0oogoooao

3. Revenue and Segment Information 3. U0O0O0O0O0OOLOOO

(continued)
Revenue Results
oad oag
Six months ended Six months ended
30 June 30 June
ooed300 060 ooen3000edd
2016 2015 2016 2015
20160 20150 20160 20150
RMB’000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
oooag oooad oooad oooao
(Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
0000 o0oomoooomooooo
Luminaire products oooo 1,210,405 1,060,923 361,141 254,369
Lamp products ooog 443,105 580,272 74,365 102,269
Lighting electronic products gooooad 109,239 131,052 23,900 27,792
Total ogd 1,762,749 1,772,247 459,406 384,430
Reconciliation oooag

Elimination of intersegment oooooooo

results (3,360) (3,491)
Interest income oooo 9,632 10,686
Unallocated income and gains 00000000 22,905 32,309
Corporate and other ooooog

unallocated expenses ooood (347,483) (343,414)
Gain on disposal of oooooag

a subsidiary ogooa 7,419 -
Finance costs good (4,957) (1,660)
Fair value loss on the goooooo

derivative component of goood

convertible bonds oooooooo (837) -
Share of results of associates oo0oooooog 545 (1,931)
Profit before income tax oooag 143,270 76,929

gooooooooo 201600000



Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Oooooooooogd

4.

Profit Before Income Tax

This is arrived at after charging/(crediting):

gogo

ggoomooooooooobo

Six months ended 30 June
goed300 0600

2016 2015
20160 20150
RMB’000 RMB’000
oooo 0oooo
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
oooooo oooooo
Cost of inventories sold gooooo 1,316,275 1,375,497
Depreciation oo 47,485 53,611
Amortisation of prepaid land lease oooooood
payments 660 731
Amortisation of computer software, ooooooooao
customer relationships and patents” gooooo* 1,178 1,613
Research and development costs: ooooo
Deferred expenditure amortised* gooooooor 1,416 1,786
Current period expenditure ooooao 25,944 23,982
Less: Government grants gooood
released** oooo* (173) (239)
25,771 28,743
27,187 25,529
Minimum lease payments oooood 7,629 8,695
Auditor’s remuneration ooooo 1,080 -
Employee benefit expenses ooooood
(including directors’ and chief oooooooo
executive’s remuneration): goooood
Wages and salaries goooog 218,020 238,956
Equity-settled share option expense goooooooon 239 36
Pension scheme contributions goooooo
(defined contribution scheme) oooooooao 25,734 30,908
Housing funds’ contributions gooooono 6,142 8,086
Other welfare expenses oooooo 7,076 14,740
257,211 292,726
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Profit Before Income Tax (continued)

This is arrived at after charging/(crediting): (continued)

Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

OoOouoouoooood

4. OO0 ooooo

gomoboooboobooo
ooo

Six months ended 30 June
goed3000600

relationships and patents and the amortisation of deferred
development costs for the Period under Review are
included in “Cost of sales” and “Administrative and other
expenses” in the interim condensed consolidated statement
of profit or loss.

2016 2015
20160 20150
RMB’000 RMB’000
oooo oooo
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
oooooo oooooo
Impairment of property ooooooodo
plant and equipment 38,774 4,305
Impairment of trade receivables, net oooooooooo 15,212 3,056
Reversal of impairment of oooooogod
prepayments and other receivables gooooooo - (6)
Write-off of prepayments and oooooog
other receivables oooooo 9,413 -
(Reversal of write-down)/write-down O O000M OO0
of inventories to net realisable value gooooooog (9,572) 15,811
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of oooooooo
property, plant and equipment goood
ooomoo (2,598) 631
Fair value losses, net: ooooooooo
The derivative component of ooooooog
convertible bonds (Note 17) oooooootzo 837 -
Forward currency contracts gooooo - 1,618
* The amortisation of computer software, customer * goooooooooooooo

ooooooooooobooooo
ooboooooooooooon
opobobooooooonm
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
do0doddodoonogd

4. Profit Before Income Tax (continued) 4. OO0 ooooo
** Various government grants have been received for setting e 00000o0oO0oo0ooo0ooooo

up research activities in Chongging City, Guangdong and goooooOoooooooboDao
Zhejiang Province, the PRC, to support the development of LEDOO0OO0O0OOO0O0O0O0O00O
energy-saving products and LED products. The government oooooopoooooooon
grants released have been deducted from the research and oooooooooooooon
development costs to which they relate. Government grants o0o0o0o0oo0o0oo0oo0o
received for which related expenditure has not yet been oo0o0O0ooO0o0oooO0oOooooo
undertaken are included in government grants in the interim oooooOoooooooOooo
condensed consolidated statement of financial position. ooooooo
There are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating
to these grants.

5. Other Income and Gains 5. Uodgpooad

Six months ended 30 June
00ed300 0600

2016 2015
20160 20150
RMB’000 RMB’000
oooog oooag
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
oooogo ooogogo
Other income oooad
Bank interest income oooooo 12,783 10,686
Government grants oooo 7,136 18,616
Rental income oooo 997 972
Trademark licence fees oo0ooo 250 4,146
Others oo 2,497 3,315
23,663 37,735
Gains oad
Exchange gains, net oooooo 5,932 5,080
Gain on disposal of items of oooooooa
property, plant and equipment ooooooo 2,598 -
Sales of scrap materials oooo 344 180
8,874 5,260
32,537 42,995
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OO000d0oogoooao

6. Finance Costs 6. 0OOO0O
Six months ended 30 June
ooend3000600
2016 2015
20160 20150
RMB’000 RMB’000
oogo ooogo
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
oooogo oooogo
Interest on bank loans oooooao 363 1,137
Interest expenses on convertible goooood
bonds (Note 17) oooooitzo 2,476 -
Other interest expenses oooooao 2,118 523
4,957 1,660
7. Income Tax Expense 7. 0OO0O0O0O

The Group is subject to income tax on an individual legal

entity basis on profits arising in or derived from the tax

jurisdictions in which the subsidiaries are domiciled and

operated. NVC Brasil is subject to enterprise income tax

on its worldwide income with a basic rate of 15% and

increased by a surtax of 10% on annual taxable profits

exceeding BRL240,000. No provision for Hong Kong profits

tax or the United Kingdom (the “UK”) corporation income

tax has been made as the Group has no assessable profits
arising in Hong Kong or the UK during the Period under
Review (six months ended 30 June 2015: RMBNIl).

goooboboboOooOOoOo0oogg
gooooobobobooooogg
goooooobobobooOoOogg
goooobbbobobOOo0oogo
Ooo00O0Q0D015% 000000
OO0O00O0O0O0ODOogoe240,000
ooooDoDooo10% o000
gooooooobobooogo
goooobbooOo0o0oogog
goooboboboOooOOoOo0oogg
O00000oo2015060300
OeO0DOODOOOMO
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Cons*olidated Financial Statements
OO000OO0oooooon

7. Income Tax Expense (continued) 7. O0O0O0oooooo
The table below sets out the items of income tax expense gooooooboooooon
in the Period under Review. oo

Six months ended 30 June
goend3000600

2016 2015
20160 20150
RMB’000 RMB’000
oooo oooo
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
oooooo ooooono
Current income tax ooooo
— Current income tax charge gooooogo
for the period 46,603 36,830
— Under/(over)-provision in oooooooooao

respect of prior years oooogo 819 (5,546)
47,422 31,284
Deferred tax oooo (2,410) (9,560)
Total tax charge for the period ooooooood 45,012 21,724
The Company’s subsidiaries located in the PRC are subject 0000000 O0O0OO00O25%0
to enterprise income tax at the statutory tax rate of 25%. O0o000oooooooboooo
According to the preferential tax policies in the PRC, two of g0o0o0oooooooooooon
our subsidiaries were recognised as western development goooooooooooooo
enterprises by the local tax authorities and were entitled 0015%00000000000
to the preferential tax rate of 15%, while the other three of go0ooooooooooooon
our subsidiaries were recognised as high-tech enterprises 000000000 D0oO15%00

by PRC tax authorities and were entitled to the preferential ggooo

tax rate of 15%.
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Earnings per Share Attributable to
Ordinary Equity Holders of the Parent

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares in
issue during the six months ended 30 June 2015 and 2016.

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on the
profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent.
The weighted average number of ordinary shares used in
the calculation is the number of ordinary shares in issue
during the period, as used in the basic earnings per share
calculation, and the weighted average number of ordinary
shares assumed to have been issued at no consideration on
the deemed exercise or conversion of all dilutive potential
ordinary shares into ordinary shares.

No adjustment has been made to the basic earnings per
share amounts presented for the six months ended 30 June
2015 and 2016 in respect of a dilution as the impact of the
share options and convertible bonds outstanding had an
anti-dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share amounts
presented.

Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
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'Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Oooooooooogd

8. Earnings per
Ordinary Equity Holders of the Parent
(continued)

The calculations of basic and diluted earnings per share
are based on:

Share Attributable to 8.

goooooobooboboood
od

Six months ended 30 June
00ed300 0600

2016 2015
20160 20150
RMB’000 RMB’000
oooo oooo
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
oooooo oooooo
Earnings: oono
Profit attributable to ordinary Jdoooooao
equity holders of the parent 0o0o0oooooo
for the purposes of basic gooooooo
earnings per share ooooo 82,140 17,073
Six months ended 30 June
ooen300 0600
2016 2015
20160 20150
’000 Shares 000 Shares
gooog gooood
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)
oooooo oooooo
Shares: ooo
Weighted average number of oooooooooo
ordinary shares for the purposes ogoooooooo
of basic earnings per share 3,128,448 3,128,448
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
OO000d0oogoooao

10.

Dividend

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the six months ended 30 June 2015 and 2016.

Property, Plant and Equipment

During the six months ended 30 June 2016, the Group
acquired assets with a cost of RMB48,432,000 (six months
ended 30 June 2015: RMB27,205,000). Assets with a net
book value of RMB232,000 were disposed of by the Group
during the six months ended 30 June 2016 (six months
ended 30 June 2015: RMB517,000), resulting in a net gain
on disposal of RMB2,598,000 (six months ended 30 June
2015: net loss on disposal of RMB631,000).

As at 30 June 2016, land use rights with aggregate
carrying amount of RMB48,973,000 (31 December
2015 RMB49,633,000) (Note 11) and certain buildings
included in property, plant and equipment with aggregate
carrying amount of RMB242,728,000 (31 December 2015:
RMB248,348,000) were pledged for Group’s applications
of assets preservation in certain PRC legal proceedings.
Property in the UK with aggregate carrying amount of
RMB45,536,000 (31 December 2015: RMBNIl) was pledged
to secure a bank loan.

10.

0o

OD0O0OoDbDOoOobooogz2o01500
200lc060 300 060 0000 DO
RN

gogoaodn

0 02016060300 060 OO O
OO0Q0D0DbOD48,4320 000 O
2015060300 060 00 D DO O
27,2060 0000000002016
geO0300 060 00O00D0ODO0O
OooooooDooOo232000
O 000 02015060300 Oe0O
ooooosi700@obonOoo
ooDoO0ogog259s80d0d0n
2015060300 Oe0 OO OO O
obo0oobO0e3100O ™

020160603000 O OO OO
ooo489730 0 000 bO0O0Od

020150120310 0 0 0O O 49,633

goooom1ioooooonoo
0 0242,7280 0O 20150 120 31
OD0000248,3480 000 00O
oooooooobboooog
ooooobobboboooogg
gooooooobbooogg
45,6360 00 201501203100 O
ooboobooboooboobboo
gooooooo
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Oooooooooogd

11.

Prepaid Land Lease Payments

A\

9.\ 4

1. JO0O0Ooon

30 June 31 December
2016 2015
20160 20150
60 300 120310
RMB’000 RMB’000
goood goood
(Unaudited) (Audited)
oooooo ooood
Carrying amounts as at doooooogoo
beginning of period/year 49,633 56,109
Recognised during the period/year oooooog (660) (1,463)
Reclassification to assets held forsale 0000000
agoooo - (5,013)
Carrying amount as at end of period/year OO 0 000000 48,973 49,633
Current portion included o0ooooooo
in prepayments, deposits ooooood
and other receivables ooooodo (875) (875)
Non-current portion ooooo 48,098 48,758

12. Available-for-sale Financial Assets 12. 00000000
30 June 31 December
2016 2015
020160 20150
60 300 120310
RMB’000 RMB’000
ogooo gooo
(Unaudited) (Audited)
ogooooao goooo

Listed equity investments, at fairvalue OOOOOCOOOOO

oooog 24,600 -
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

12.

13.

OoOouoouoooood

Available-for-sale Financial Assets 12,

(continued)

During the Period under Review, the gross gain in respect
of the Group’s available-for-sale investments recognised in
other comprehensive income amounted to RMB2,600,000.

ooboaoaooon

goooooboboboboOoOogogg
oooobobOoOoCoOOoOOo0oOoOog
goozeoonnd

Inventories 13. 0O 0O

30 June 31 December

2016 2015

20160 20150

601300 120 310

RMB’000 RMB’000

oooaog oooo

(Unaudited) (Audited)
oooogo ooooog

Raw materials ooo 69,673 71,451
Work in progress 000 18,300 21,883
Finished goods ooo 338,924 402,116
426,897 495,450

During the Period under Review, the amount of the reversal
of write-down of inventories recognised was RMB9,572,000
(six months ended 30 June 2015: write-down of
RMB15,811,000), which was recorded in “Cost of sales”
in the interim condensed consolidated statement of profit
or loss.

goooooooououoogo
oooooooosr200ObnOd
2015060300 Oe0 OO OO O
gobooot1s811igoo@monoog
gbooobopboooboooobogo
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'Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

Oooooooooogd

14. Trade and Bills Receivables, Prepayments, 14. U0 0004040 4d4dogd
Deposits, and Other Receivables, and Odoodooododond
Restricted Bank Balances and Short-term oooooooddad
Deposits googod

30 June 31 December

2016 2015

20160 20150

60 300 120 310

RMB’000 RMB’000

goood goood

(Unaudited) (Audited)
oooogo ooooo

Trade receivables oooooo 1,179,271 1,135,749
Impairment oo (134,204) (118,992)
Trade receivables, net oooooooo 1,045,067 1,016,757
Bills receivable oooooo 207,558 187,013
Less: Trade receivables with maturity 0O O0O0O00OO0OO

more than one year!" oooogo (13,214) (13,856)
Current portion oooa 1,239,411 1,189,914

M The amount represented trade receivables due from a
customer which was expected to be repaid beyond 12
months from 30 June 2016. In addition, an amount of
RMBNIil due from the same customer, net of impairment,
was recorded as current as at 30 June 2016 (31 December
2015: RMB21,358,000).
collateral or other credit enhancements over the trade

The Group does not hold any

receivable balances.
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

14.

~

Trade and Bills Receivables, Prepayments,
Deposits, and Other Receivables, and
Restricted Bank Balances and Short-term
Deposits (continued)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end
of the Period under Review, based on the transaction date

OoOouoouoooood

googoboogogd
godoudgogoogd
gooooobbobon
goobaooon

goooobooboboooogogad
goooooboboboboOoOogogg

and net of provision, is as follows. Oo0oono

30 June 31 December

2016 2015

20160 20150

60 300 120 310

RMB’000 RMB’000

oooo oooo

(Unaudited) (Audited)
oooooo ooood

Within 3 months 3000 792,949 639,615
4 to 6 months 40600 140,967 235,337
7 to 12 months 701200 63,647 59,798
110 2 years 10020 27,738 68,990
Over 2 years 2000 19,766 13,017
1,045,067 1,016,757

gooooooooo 201600000
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do0doddodoonogd

14.

Trade and Bills Receivables, Prepayments,
Deposits, and Other Receivables, and
Restricted Bank Balances and Short-term
Deposits (continued)

Trade receivables of the Group represented proceeds
receivable from sale of goods. The Group’s trading terms
with its customers are mainly on credit, except for new
customers where payment in advance is normally required.
The credit periods generally range from 30 to 180 days
for major customers. Each customer has a maximum
credit limit. The Group seeks to maintain strict control
over its outstanding receivables and has a credit control
department to minimise credit risk. Overdue balances

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED Interim Report 2016
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OO000d0oogoooao

14.

Trade and Bills Receivables, Prepayments,
Deposits, and Other Receivables, and
Restricted Bank Balances and Short-term
Deposits (continued)

As at 31 December 2015 and 30 June 2016, except for the
trade receivables with maturity over one year as mentioned
above, the fair values of trade and bills receivables
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the
short-term maturities.

Included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables
are the amounts due from a company of RMB550,924,000
(31 December 2015: RMB550,924,000) in aggregate arising
from the rights held by the Group pursuant to several letters
of counter guarantee issued by the company which was
also one of the borrowers of the bank loans. The directors
were of the opinion that an amount of RMB265,564,000 (31
December 2015: RMB265,564,000) was expected to be
recoverable through the enforcement of counter guarantees.
The unrecoverable amount of RMB285,360,000 has been
provided for impairment as at 31 December 2015 and 30
June 2016. Further details are set out in Note 18(a).

Included in restricted bank balances and short-term
deposits is a frozen bank balance of RMB54,758,000 and
RMB55,076,000 as at 31 December 2015 and 30 June
2016 respectively. Further details are set out in Note 18(b)
(i).

020150120 310 0 20160 60 30
gooooooobobooooog
ooooobobbobboooooo
gooooooobobooogg
gooooobobbobooooa

00000000000 O0O0OO
000000000 O0000O00
000000000000000
000000000 000O000
0000000000 0550924
0 00201501203100 0 O O
550,0240 0000000000
0000000000 0265564
0 00201501203100 0 O O
265,5640 O M 020150 120 31
0O02016060300000000
0002853600 0000000
000000000 18@0

0000000000O00O000
020150 120 310 O 20160 60 30
0000000 0O0O0O00O000
54,7580 000 0 0550760 00
000000000 18(b)i).
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Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
OO000d0oogoooao

16. Interest-bearing Loans 16. OO OO
30 June 2016 31 December 2015
20160 60 300 20150120 310
(Unaudited) (Audited)
oooooa ooooa
Contractual Contractual
interest interest
rate (%) Maturity  RMB’000 rate (%) Maturity ~ RMB’000
0000/(%) 0oo 0000 0oo00(%) 000 000C
Current oooo
Bank loans - secured gooooooo Base*+1.90 On demand' 42,430 Base™+1.90 On demand! 22,153
0o00*+1.90 00000 0ooo*+1.90 oOooOO!

5.35% 2016% 27,800
5.35% 2016%° 22,200
3.20% 20162 101,969

Bank loan-unsecured  0OOO0O00OOO 4% per month 2016 2,481 -
4%000

Total oo 44,911 174,122

1 The secured bank loan represented a GBP-dominated 1 oo0ooo0oooOooooooao
secured facility amounting to GBP8,000,000 (31 December OO0ooO0oO0oooos,ooo00n
2015: GBP5,000,000), of which GBP4,756,000 (31 020150120 310 0 0 05,0000 O M
December 2015: GBP2,304,000) had been utilised as at 000 04,7560 0020150120
the end of the Period under Review. The bank loan was 3i00002zs0400000000
secured by the pledge over certain trade receivables oo0ooooooooooooo
amounting to RMB42,430,000 (31 December 2015: 0 42,4300 00O 20150120 310 0
RMB22,153,000), property in the UK with aggregate 00022130 00000000
carrying amount of RMB45,536,000 (31 December 2015: O0000000000045,536
RMBNiIl) and time deposits amounting to RMBNil (31 O00000000o0o020150120
December 2015: RMB51,000,000). In accordance with the 3100000000000000
contract, the loan was repayable upon the collection of the OO0o0Oooo2015012031000
factored trade receivables. gost,0000000oogooon

ooooooooOoOoOoOoOoO0O0
opbooOooOoo00oooo
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16.

17.

Interest-bearing Loans (continued)

2 The secured banks loans represented RMB-denominated
secured facilities. The bank loans were secured by the pledge
of time deposits amounting to RMBNIil (31 December 2015:
RMB151,850,000).

3 The loan agreements contain repayment on demand clause.

“Base” means the Bank of England base rate.

As at 30 June 2016, the fair values of interest-bearing loans
approximate to their carrying amounts largely due to the
short-term maturities.

Convertible bonds

On 20 May 2016, the Company and an independent
third party entered into a subscription agreement (the
“Subscription Agreement”) in relation to the issue of
convertible bonds denominated in Hong Kong dollar (“HKD”)
in an aggregate principal amount of HKD500 million (the
“Convertible Bonds”). The Convertible Bonds have been
issued on 7 June 2016.

Pursuant to the Subscription Agreement, the Convertible
Bonds are convertible into fully paid ordinary shares:

(a) on or after the issue date (i.e. 7 June 2016) and up
to and excluding the close of business on the second
anniversary of the issue date (the “First Maturity
Date”) at an initial conversion price of HKD0.925 per
share (subject to anti-dilutive adjustments); and

(b) with extension up to and excluding the close of
business on the fourth anniversary of the issue date
if agreed by the Company and the bondholder in
writing at least 30 days prior to the First Maturity
Date (the “Second Maturity Date”).
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17.

Convertible bonds (continued)

The Convertible Bonds bear interest at the rate of 7.8% per
annum on the principal amount of the bonds outstanding.
The interest will be payable by the Company semi-annually
in arrears. The outstanding amount of the Convertible
Bonds will be redeemed on maturity (the date falling on
the First Maturity Date or the Second Maturity Date, where
applicable) at a value equal to the aggregate of (1) its
principal amount outstanding; and (2) the interest accrued.

The Convertible Bonds that contain both liability and
conversion option components were classified separately
into their respective items on initial recognition. The
embedded derivative of conversion option is therefore
accounted for as a derivative. The fair values of the
derivative component are determined based on the
valuations performed by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate
Appraisal and Advisory Limited, a firm of professionally
qualified valuers, using the binomial option pricing model.
Changes in fair value of that component between the issue
date and the measurement date are recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value of the liability component is measured as
the present value of the expected payments and principal
repayment at maturity on initial recognition and is carried
as a liability on the amortised cost basis until extinguished
on conversion or redemption.
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000000000000000
0000000000000 0Mm
OMNOO0000O00O00OEOoO
OoooooQ

oooooobboboooogg
gooooooobobooogg
goooooobobobooooog
ooooobbbobooooogg
gooooooobobooogg
gooooobooboboooooa
oooooobboboooogg
gooooooooboooogo
gooooobooboboooooa
ooooooobobboooogo
gooooooobobooogg
gooooooobobooooog
gooooooboboboooooo

0000000000 201te00onog

91



- 7

i

5.\ 4
W

' &
Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
000000000000

T
Do 3

...

17. 00O0OQoooo

17. Convertible bonds (continued)

002016060300 060 OO O
gooboobooooooooog
goooooo

The movements of the liability component and derivative
component of the Convertible Bonds during the six months
ended 30 June 2016 are as follows:

30 June 2016

92

20160 601 300
Liability Derivative
component of component of
convertible convertible
bonds bonds Total
oooooo O0ooOoooag
0000 O0OOoboo oo
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ooono oooo aooo
(Unaudited)  (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
oooo0o0o 000000 [pDooooao
Issue of the Convertible Bonds goooooooo 416,493 10,841 427,334
Effective interest expenses goooooooooooo
recognised to profit or loss 2,476 - 2,476
Interest paid gooo (1,187) - (1,187)
Fair value change gooooao - 837 837
Exchange realignment oooo 19 10 29
30 June 2016 20160 60 300 417,801 11,688 429,489
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18. Litigations and Contingent Liabilities
(continued)

Litigations (continued)
(a) The Group as a plaintiff (continued)

From December 2014 onwards, the Group has
initiated a series of legal proceedings against Mr.
WU Changjiang, a former director and former chief
executive officer of the Company, Mrs. WU Lian
(spouse of Mr. WU Changjiang), Mr. WU Xianming,
Mrs. CHEN Min, Chongging Lei Li Jie Industrial
Development Co., Ltd., Wu Ji, Chongging Jiang Te
Surface Treatment Co., Ltd. and Chongging Hua Biao
Lighting Manufacturing Co., Ltd., in the Intermediate
People’s Court of Huizhou for damages. In addition,
as indicated in 8 letters of counter guarantee
issued by Wu Ji with dates in 2013 and 2014, Wu
Ji provided counter guarantees to the Group to
reimburse any losses for provision of guarantees on
the bank loans borrowed by certain PRC companies
under the Pledge and Guarantee Agreements.
An aggregate amount of RMB550,924,000 was
recognised as other receivables due from a company
as at 31 December 2014 and 2015, and 30 June
2015 and 2016. The directors are of the opinion
that an amount of RMB265,564,000 is recoverable
as at 31 December 2014 and 2015, and 30 June
2015 and 2016, and accordingly a provision for the
unrecoverable amount of RMB285,360,000 had been
charged in profit or loss of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2014 and there was no further
provision or write-back of provision for impairment
loss during the year ended 31 December 2015 and
the six months ended 30 June 2015 and 2016.
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18. Litigations and Contingent Liabilities
(continued)

Litigations (continued)

(b) The Group as a defendant

(i)

In addition to the Pledge and Guarantee
Agreements, the Subsidiary entered into
guarantee agreements with another PRC
bank in 2013 (the “Guarantee Agreement
1”) and a PRC finance company in 2014
(the “Guarantee Agreement 2”) respectively,
providing guarantees to the PRC bank and
the PRC finance company for their loan
facilities granted to their borrowers. Mrs. WU
Lian is the borrower of the loan in relation to
the Guarantee Agreement 2.

The outstanding loans of RMB35,497,000 and
RMB34,000,000 in relation to the Guarantee
Agreements 1 and 2 were in default in 2015
and 2014 respectively. The PRC bank and
the PRC finance company have taken legal
actions against the respective borrowers and
the guarantors (including the Subsidiary and
Wu Ji as guarantors) to recover the loan
balances and interests. The directors consider
that the likelihood of the Group sustaining
losses from the Guarantee Agreements 1 and
2 is remote as it is considered that the loans
had sufficient underlying securities including
Wu Ji's guarantees and the Subsidiary is only
one of the guarantors for each of the loans.
As a result, the directors considered that no
provision thereon is considered necessary as
at 31 December 2014 and 2015, and 30 June
2015 and 2016.

Subsequent to the end of reporting period,
the Group has received a judgement from
the court, which orders, among other things,
that the Group is jointly and severally liable
for the payment of outstanding loan of
RMB35,497,000 and interest to the PRC bank
in relation to the Guarantee Agreement 1.
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18. Litigations and Contingent Liabilities
(continued)

Litigations (continued)

(b) The Group as a defendant (continued)

(i

The Subsidiary also entered into a guarantee
agreement (the “Guarantee Agreement 3”)
with a PRC bank in 2014, providing guarantee
to the bank for a loan facility granted to its
borrower. In addition, the bank loan was
secured by the pledge of a piece of land
owned by Wu Ji.

The bank loan was in default in 2014 and
the bank has taken legal actions against
the borrower and the guarantors (including
the Subsidiary) to recover the bank loan
balance and interest. A court order was
issued to freeze assets of the guarantors
(including the Subsidiary) in the amount of
RMB62,000,000. As a result of the court
order, bank balance of the Subsidiary in the
amount of RMB54,128,000, RMB54,758,000,
RMB54,442,000 and RMB55,076,000 had
been frozen by the bank as at 31 December
2014 and 2015, and 30 June 2015 and
2016 respectively, which was recorded in
“Restricted bank balances and short-term
deposits” in the interim condensed
consolidated statement of financial position
of the Group.
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18. Litigations and Contingent Liabilities
(continued)

Litigations (continued)

(®)

The Group as a defendant (continued)

(i

(continued)

During the current period, the Group has
received a judgement from the court, which
orders, among other things, that the Group is
jointly and severally liable for the payment of
principal of RMB60,000,000 and interest and
costs to the bank. The Group has filed an
appeal against the judgement with the court,
and the outcome of the appeal is pending
as of the date of approval of these interim
condensed consolidated financial statements.

The directors consider that the likelihood
of the Group sustaining losses from the
guarantee is remote as it is considered
that the bank loan had sufficient underlying
securities and the Subsidiary is only one
of the guarantors for the bank loan. The
directors believe that the above frozen bank
balance will be released upon the conclusion
of the legal proceedings and no provision is
considered necessary as at 31 December
2014 and 2015, and 30 June 2015 and
2016. In addition, the directors are of the
opinion that no provision on any shortfall
between the amount to be ultimately settled
by the Group under the Guarantee Agreement
3 and the above frozen bank balance is
considered necessary as at 31 December
2014 and 2015, and 30 June 2015 and 2016
respectively.
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19.

20.

Pledge of Assets 19.

As at 30 June 2016, save for those disclosed elsewhere in
these interim condensed consolidated financial statements,
the following assets of the Group were pledged, as

godn

g20t60e0 3000000000
gooooouououououogogoo
gooooboobooogooboo

applicable: 0 [Id
30 June 31 December
2016 2015
20160 20150
601 3001 120 310
RMB’000 RMB’000
gopoo gooo
(Unaudited) (Audited)
gooooo ogoooo
Property, plant and equipment Joooogooad 288,264 248,348
Prepaid land lease payments oooogo 48,973 49,633
Trade and bills receivables ooooooood 42,430 22,153
Pledged time deposits goooooad 51,573 254,222
431,240 574,356
Related Party Transactions 20. UOoud
(@) None of the shareholders is the controlling (@ ODO0O0O0O0OO0OO0OOOO0OO
entity of the Company. RN
(b)  Major related parties with which the Group (b) O 02016060300 6

had transactions during the six months
ended 30 June 2016 and six months ended
30 June 2015 are listed below:

A e i, ih igifica if.e ces e heG

Elec-Tech International Co., Ltd. (“Elec-Tech”)

000002015060 30
gboeonbDOOOOO
ubooooboood
od

ooooooooonoon
ooo
goboooooboooo
gomoooon

0000000000 201te00onog

99



{

3

. = - : 3
‘et

&

Notes to the Interim Condensed Consi:lidated Financial Statements
O000O0o0ooooono

20. Related Party Transactions (continued)

(b)

(continued)

$ b idia.ie .f Eec-Tech

Wuhu Retop Electronics Co., Ltd.

Appliance Co. of America (Zhuhai) Co., Ltd.
Dalian Elec Lighting Technology Co., Ltd.
Guangdong Elec-Tech NVC Lighting Co., Ltd.
Shenzhen Retop LED Display Co., Ltd.

Guangdong Retop Lighting Landscape Art Design
Engineering Co., Ltd.

Wuhu Sanyi Lighting Co., Ltd.

Wuhu Elec-Tech International Lighting Technology
Co., Ltd.

A a sciae ,f he G, a da , bidia,. -f
E ec-Tech
Huizhou Thor Led-Opto Co., Ltd.

A a .ciae.,f he G
Wuhu NVC Agel Ecommerce Ltd.

E iie cs .»edB -M.WUdJa .. g, adiec.,.
ad,b a ia haeh,de .fZheja g NVC
Jiangshan World Bright Crystal Co., Ltd.

Quzhou Aushite lllumination Co., Ltd.

A e i, s e hich he G,, i diec, ha
ig ifica i f. e ce h.y gha a .ciae

Chongging Chidian Technology Co., Ltd.
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20. Related Party Transactions (continued)

(b)

(c)

(continued)

A e i

- Cs L» ed l?' M,. WANG Xiasbs, a
L-,'e, 'Tg,«’a age’e +f he C,,’\ a, !

v

Nanjing Chuang Yi Jia Trading Co., Ltd.

U On 21 May 2015, the entity ceased to be a related

party of the Group due to the resignation of a key

management of the Company.

In addition to the transactions detailed
interim condensed

elsewhere in the

(c)

consolidated financial statements, the Group
had the following transactions with related
parties during the six months ended 30 June

20.

ooooooon

(b) OO0

ooooood

ooooo

ooooooooooon

gogooooo

gogd

! 0201506021000 00

ooooao

oooooao

obooDO0oobooobo0oo

gooao

ooboboboooooooboog
gogoooobooboogd
0 02016060300 060 0O
oogoooooo

2016:
Six months ended 30 June
goenso00ed O
2016 2015
20160 20150
RMB’000 RMB’000
oooo oooo
Notes (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
oo 0dooo0odo Ooooooo
E ec-Tech: ooooo
Purchase of finished goods ooooa (i) 569 8
$. b idia.ie f E ec-Tech: ooooooooong
Sale of finished goods goooao (i) 568 4
Trademark licence fee income goooooao (ii) 244 3,506
Purchase of raw materialsand 000000000
finished goods (i) 39,443 39,962
Rental fee income gooao (i) 121 -
Purchase of property, gooooooooo
plant and equipment (i) 45 -
0000000000 201600000 101
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20. Related Party Transactions (continued) 20. OO0 oooo
(c) (continued) (c) OO0

Six months ended 30 June
goec30d0600

2016 2015

20160 20150

RMB’000 RMB’000

gooo oooo

Notes (Unaudited) (Unaudited)

oo goboooo obobooob

A a sciae.,f he G oooooooooooooo

aday«bidiajr,,f ooooooo

E ec-Tech:
Purchase of finished goods ooooa (i) - 108
Purchase of property, gooooooooo

plant and equipment (i) 3,735 =
Rental fee income oooo (i) 591 586
A a sciae.,f heG  : oooooooooon
Sales of raw materials and 000000000

finished goods (i) 105,647 -
E iie c» .» edh,. ooooooooooon

M..WUJia . g,adiec, O0000000000
ad,b a ia haeh,de
+fZheja g NVC:

Purchases of raw materialsand O0O000O000O0O

finished goods (i) 3,850 5,205
Sales of raw materials and ooooooooo
finished goods (i) - 2,052
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20. Related Party Transactions (continued)

(c)

OoOouoouoooood

20. DOoOoooooog

(continued) (c) OOO
Six months ended 30 June
goedso00end
2016 2015
20160 20150
RMB’000 RMB’000
oooo oooao
Notes (Unaudited) (Unaudited)
oo ooooono Ooooodoa
E iie » e hich he G ooooooooooooo
i diec,. ha g ifica oooooooooood
if.ecehygha a sciae:
Purchases of raw materials oooboooooo
and finished goods (i) 5,096 5,429
A e iy,cs .»edh. ooooooooooood
V WANG Xiasbs, af,.Me. O0OOO0O00O0O0O000
ga,«’a age‘e »f
he C,,’\ a,:
Sales of raw materials and 000oOoOOoooo
finished goods (i) - 883,467

Notes:

(i) The transactions were made at prices mutually

agreed by both parties.

(ii) Trademark licence fee income arose from licensing

the “NVC” brand to related parties, and charged at

1% to 3% of the related parties’ annual sales. The

royalty rate was mutually agreed by both parties.

In the opinion of the board of directors, the related

party transactions were conducted on normal

commercial terms and in the ordinary course of the

Group’s business.

(i) oooo0oOoooooon
ooo

(i 000000000000
D0OoOoO0oO0O00oO0OoOoo
OoO0OoO0O0OO0oOoO
1%03%00000000
ooooo

gboogbooogobod

goboooooboooo
ggoooooooobo
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20. Related Party Transactions (continued) 20. OO0 oooo

(d) Outstanding balances with related parties: (d O00000O0OCOO0OO
Except as disclosed elsewhere in the interim gooooooooobod
condensed consolidated financial statements, as 00000 0201606030
at 30 June 2016, included in trade receivables; Oooooooooonod
prepayments, deposits and other receivables; and gooooooooood
other payables and accruals of the Group are the gooooooooood
aggregate balance of RMB74,020,000 (31 December dodooooooood
2015: RMB523,000); RMB3,579,000 (31 December 00000 074,0200 0
2015: RMB8,439,000); and RMB6,460,000 (31 0201501203100 0 O O
December 2015: RMB2,695,000) due with related 5230 O O O 03,5790
parties. go201s501203100 003

084300 0 O0DODODO
6,4600 00O 20150 120 31
ooooo2e69500000

oo
(e) Compensation of key management personnel (e) JODOOODDOODODO
of the Group: o

Six months ended 30 June
O0ded30dOe6end

2016 2015
20160 20150
RMB’000 RMB’000
oooo oooo
(Unaudited) (Unaudited)

oooooo OOOOOO

Short-term employee benefits oooaooao 9,861 9,742

Equity-settled share option doooooooooao
expenses - 5
9,861 9,747
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21.

OoOouoouoooood

Financial Instruments by Category 21, J0o0ooooood

Set out below is an overview of financial instruments held

by the Group as at 30 June 2016:

goooooon

gooDoOz201e0603000000

30 June 31 December
2016 2015
20160 20150
60 300 120 310
RMB’000 RMB’000
oooo oooo
(Unaudited) (Audited)
gpooooo opood
Financial assets: gooogd
Loans and receivables at oopDoooDbood
amortised cost: gooao
Trade receivables with maturity more oooooooooaga
than one year gooo 13,214 13,856
Trade and bills receivables oo0oboDbood 1,239,411 1,189,914
Financial assets included in prepayments, 0000000000
deposits and other receivables 00000000000 334,515 315,563
Restricted bank balances and o0o00OOobDOoDogoogo
short-term deposits 250,949 660,307
Cash and cash equivalents oooooooag 1,055,533 903,849
2,893,622 3,083,489
Available-for-sale financial assets at ooooOoDogoogo
fair value gooo 24,600 S

gooooooooo 201600000
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21. Financial Instruments by

%

G

Category 21.

1-‘.
: #
\*Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

gboodgooggod

(continued) L7000
30 June 31 December
2016 2015
20160 20150
60 300 120 310
RMB’000 RMB’000
oooo oooo
(Unaudited) (Audited)
gpooooo ooooog
Financial liabilities: goooDood
Financial liabilities at fair value through oopooooooo
profit or loss: oooono
Convertible bonds gooog
— derivative component Oo0ooooo 11,688 =
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: oooDooogo
gpoooog
Trade and bills payables goooooooag 580,361 611,498
Financial liabilities included in other gpooooooao
payables and accruals ooooooooa 372,246 364,300
Interest-bearing loans oooao 44,911 174,122
Convertible bonds o0ooo0o-00oo
— liability component 417,801 =
1,415,319 1,149,920
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22. Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of
Financial Instruments (continued)

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement
hierarchy of the Group’s financial instruments:

Assets and liabilities measured at fair value

As at 30 June 2016

NVC LIGHTING HOLDING LIMITED Interim Report 2016



Notes to the Interim Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements
OO000d0oogoooao

22,

23.

Fair Value and Fair Value Hierarchy of 22.

Financial Instruments (continued)

The Group did not have any financial instrument measured
at fair value as at 31 December 2015.

During the Period under Review, there were no transfers of
fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and
no transfers into or out of Level 3 for both financial assets
and financial liabilities.

Capital Commitments 23.

As at 30 June 2016, the Group had the following capital
commitments:

oboboOooboooooaaad
ooooooo
0201501203100 00000
000o0O00000000on

goooobbbobobOOo0oogo
gooooobobobooooogg
ggoooooobbbooogoo

oo

gz20tedcO300 0000000
gooono

30 June 31 December

2016 2015

20160 20150

60 300J 120310

RMB’000 RMB’000

oOooa oooa

(Unaudited) (Audited)
gooooao goooo

Contracted, but not provided for: goooooooad

Property, plant and equipment oo0oooooad 131,631 132,554

gooooooooo 201600000
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24.

Disposal of a subsidiary

24.

During the Period under Review, the Group disposed

of its entire interest in Zhangpu Phoebus Lighting Co.,

Ltd. to an independent third party at a consideration of
RMB30,146,000. The net assets at the date of disposal

were as follows:

gogoaodn

gooooooooooooo
30,1400 000000O0O0O0OO
goooobobooboooogogag
gooooobooooogoogog
good

RMB’000
opogoo
(Unaudited)
oooooo
Net assets of subsidiary disposed of: gooooooooad
Property, plant and equipment opoOooooaoo 7,994
Prepaid land lease payments oooooo 4,961
Other receivables ooood 14,449
Cash and cash equivalents oooooooag 19
Other payables oooog (2,836)
Deferred tax liabilities gooooao (1,860)
22,727
Total consideration ood 30,146
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary gooooooood 7,419
Satisfied by: opooogoogo
Cash oo 30,146
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: o0oooooooooao
Cash consideration ooogo 30,146
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of OOO0O0O0O00O00O0O (19)
30,127
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25.

26.

27.

Acquisition of additional interests in a 25. D0 00O 0OOOOOOO

subsidiary

During the six months ended 30 June 2016, the Group
acquired an effective further 37.5% equity interest in a
subsidiary, increasing its interest from 50% to 87.5% for
a consideration of RMB552,072,000. The difference of
approximately RMB525,725,000 between the proportionate
share of the carrying amount of the acquirees’ net assets
and the consideration paid for the additional interests had
been debited to share premium.

Investment in a joint venture

Pursuant to the partnership agreement between the Group
and the joint venture partner, the Group will contribute
additional RMB400,000,000 to the joint venture on or before
17 March 2046.

Approval of the Interim Condensed
Consolidated Financial Statements

The unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial
statements were approved and authorised for issue by the
board of directors of the Company on 25 August 2016.

26.

27.

HEN

0002016060300 Oe0 OO
OooooOoooss2,0or20 00O
goooooObobbboOoo0ooo
37.5%0000000050%00
087.5%0 0000000000
oooooooobobooooog
OboOOobOobogsas 720000
gooooo

gogbobooood

gooooobooboo0ooogogd
gbooOO0oOobbooOo204c03017
goooooboboboooogogg
0 400,0000 O O

goooouooogo
[

goooooboboboooogogg

g20te080250 0000000
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Definitions
00

In this report, unless the context otherwise requires, the following OO0 OO0 OO0 O0OOOOOOOOO

words and expressions shall have the following meanings.

“Bengbu NVC”

gooogoo

“Board”

goooo

“BRL”
gooo

“China” or “PRC”

gooo

“Chongaing NVC”

gopoogo

“Code”

gooo

“Company” or “our Company”

gobooo

gooooobooboboboo

Bengbu NVC Smart Household Technology Co., Ltd* (00000000000
00 0), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Group with limited liability incorporated
in the PRC.
Jo000oo0o0o0oooooooooooooooooooooooooooo
gpooooooog

the board of Directors of the Company.
gooooog

Brazilian Real, the lawful currency of the Federative Republic of Brazil.
gooooooooooooon

the People’s Republic of China, but for the purpose of this report and for
geographical reference only and except where the context requires, references in
this report to “China” and the “PRC” do not apply to Taiwan, the Macau Special
Administrative Region and the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region.
00000oo0ooooo0ooooooooooooooooooooooon
goooooooooOooOoodogoUooUooUooUooooooo

Chongging NVC Lighting Co., Ltd.* (0 O0O0O0O00O0OO), a wholly foreign-
owned enterprise with limited liability incorporated in the PRC on 1 December
2006 and our direct wholly-owned subsidiary.
Jooooooooooooozo0e01201000000000O0O00O00OO
00oo0o0ooDooooooooooogo

the Corporate Governance Code and the Corporate Governance Report as set
out in the Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.
00000000000o0ooooooooooooooag

NVC Lighting Holding Limited (D00 OO0 0O 0O OO O 0O), a company incorporated
in the British Virgin Islands on 2 March 2006 and subsequently redomiciled to
the Cayman Islands on 30 March 2010 as an exempted company with limited
liability under the laws of the Cayman Islands.
000D00oooooooooz20060302000000000000000
go0o0ooooOooogoOoezotogd3o3onoooooooooooooono
gooooog
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“Corresponding Period”

gooo

“Director(s)”
gooo

“ETIC”

googgo

“En Wei Xi”

googg

“Group”

gobood

HGBPH
gooo

HHK$H
gooo

“Hong Kong”
oooo

“Huizhou NVC”

goboooo

“HID”
O HIDO

Definitions
00

means the six months ended 30 June 2016 or the six months ended 30 June
2015 (as the context may require).
Oo20160603000600 0002015060300 060000000000O0

the director(s) of the Company.
gooogo

Elec-Tech International Co., Ltd.* (00D O0OOODOOODOO0OO0O), a PRC
incorporated company which is currently listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange.
It is a substantial shareholder of the Company.
pgodooooooobooobobbooooobooboooboooooooon
0oo0ooooooooooooogo

Chongging En Wei Xi Industrial Development Co., Ltd.* (00O OO0OOOO0ODO
Oono), a limited liability company incorporated in the PRC and owned as to
40% by Mr. WU Xianming, Mr. WU Changjiang’s father-in-law.
000000000000 00000000000000040%000000
Jooooooooooooooooon

our Company and its subsidiaries.
oooooooooon

Great Britain Sterling Pound, the lawful currency of the United Kingdom.
oooooooooo

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of Hong Kong.
oooooooooo

the Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of People Republic of China.
ooooooooooooooo

Huizhou NVC Lighting Technology Co., Ltd.* (DO OOOO0OOO0ODOOO0O), a
wholly foreign-owned enterprise with limited liability incorporated in the PRC on
29 April 2006 and our direct wholly-owned subsidiary.
Jo0o00ooooOooogooopoogz2o00e040200 00 00000O00O0O0ODODO
00000o0oooDooooooooooon

High intensity discharge.
oooooo

0000000000 201te00onog
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Definitions
00

“Jiangshan Phoebus”

oooooon

“LEDU

0 LEDO

“Listing Rules”

goboooo

“Model Code”

gooogoo

“NVC Brasil”

oooogoo

“NVC China”

gooooo

“ODM”

0 obMO

-
=1

Jiangshan Phoebus Lighting Electron Co., Ltd.* (0O O0OO0OO0OOO0OO), a
limited liability company incorporated in the PRC on 8 March 2006 and our
indirect wholly-owned subsidiary.
0000o0o0ooO0DoOooOooOo2006030800000000D00D0ODOO
gooooooooooooooo

Light-emitting diode.
oooooo

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on The Stock Exchange of Ho